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Branch Office ef The Judge Advecate General
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BOARD OF REVIEW NO. 3 18 MAY 1047 BY. . CARLE witeshmmson | LT coc .
CM ETO 9421 JACC ASS'T Exec | 2o MAY sy
UNITED STATES g IX TACTICAL AIR COMMAND
v, ) Trial by GCM, convened at APO 595,
) U. S. Army, 8 February 1945. Sen-
Second Lieutenant LOREN R, ) tence: Dismissal, total forfeitures
STEELE (0-862103), 379th ) and confinement at hard labor for
Air Service Squadron, 74th ) two years. Eastern Branch, United
Service Group ) States Disciplinary Barracks, Green-
)  haven, New York.

HOLDING by BOARD OF REVIEW NO, 3
SLEEPER, SHERMAN and DEVEY, Judge Advocates

1. The record of trial in the case of the officer named above
has been examined by the Board of Review and the Board submits this,
its holding, to the Assistant Judge Advocate General in charge of
the Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General with the European
Theater of Operationms., -

2. Accused was tried upon the following charges and specifica-
tions:

CHARGE I: Violation of the 94th Article of War,

Specification 1: In that Second Lieutenant Loren
R. Steele, AC, 379th Service Squadron, 74th
Service Group, did, at Site A-=92, on or about
20 October 1944, knowingly and willfully apply
to his own use and benefit, two (2) olive-dreb,
wool shirts of the value of about eight dollars
and forty-four cents (£8.44), property of the
United States, furnished and intended for the
military service thereof.

s . 9421
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Specification 2: In that * * * did, at Site A-92,
on'or about 26 October 1944, knowingly and
willfully apply to his own use and benefit
about one thousand (1000) cigarettes, of the
value of about two dollars and thirty-four
cents (£2.34), and about one hundred (100)
packages of candy, of the value of about two
(42.00) dollars, all of the aggregate value
of about four dollars and thirty-four cents
(#4.34), being the cigarette and candy con-
tents of about ten (10) cases of ten-in-one
rations, the property of the United States,
furnished and intended for the military ser-
vice thereof. :

CHARGE II: Violation of the.83rd Article of War,

Specification 1: In that * % ¥ did, at St. Trond,
Belgium, on or about 20 October 1944, wrong- -
fully dispose of by barter with one Francois
Jans Kicken, two (2) olive-drab, wool shirts
of the value of about eight dollars and forty-
four cents (£8.44), property of the United
States, furnished and intended for the mili-
tary -service therecof,

Specification 2: In that % % * did, at St. Trond,
Belgium, on or about 26 Octcber 1944, wrong-
fully dispose of by barter with one Emmy Blanckert,
sbout one thousand (1000) cigarettes, of the
value of about two dollars and thirty-four
cents ($2.34), and about one hundred (100)
packages of candy of the value of about two
($2.00) dollars, all of the aggregate value
of about four dellars and thirty-four cents
($4.34), being the cigarette and candy con-
tents of about ten (10) cases of ten-in-one
rations, the property of the United States,
furnished and intended for the military service
thereof,

He pleaded guilty to, and was found guilty of, the specifications
and charges, except the words in Specification 2, Charge I and
Specification 2, Charge II "one hundred (100) packages of candy,

of the value of about two($2.00) dollars, all of the aggregate
value of about four dollars and thirty-four cemts ($4.34)", sub-
stituting therefor in each case the words "forty packages of

candy of the value of about eighty cents ($.80), all of the aggre- -
gate value of sbout three dollars and fourteen cents ($3.14)", of
the excepted words not guilty and of the substituted words guilty,

SONFISENT, 9421
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No evidence of previous convictions was introduced. He was sen-
tenced to be dismissed the service, to forfeilt all pay and allow-
ances due or to become due, and to be confined at hard labor at
such place as the reviewing authority may direct for two years.
The reviewing authority, the Commanding General, IX Tactical Air
Command, approved the sentence and forwarded the record of trial
for action under Article of Yar 48, The confirming authority,
the Commanding General, European Theater of Operations, confirmed
the sentence, describing it as "wholly inadequate punishment for
an officer convicted of such shameless breach of trust and ghoul=
ish misappropriation of United States millitary stores and dispos-
ing of them to his own profit", designated the Eastern Branch,
United States Disciplinary Barracks, Greenhaven, New York, as
the place of confinement, and withheld the order directing execu-
tion thereof pursuant to Article of War 50%.

3. The following evidence was adduced by the prosecutlon:

In the morning of 20 October 1944, accused asked Sergeant
Warren H, Bryant, Squadron Armorer, 379th Alr Service Squadron, to
accompany him to a shop in the town of St, Trond, Belgium, for the
purpogse of appralsing a pistol there on sale. On reaching the shop,
the sergeant gave his opinion as to the approximate value of the
weapon and accused agreed with the shopkeeper, whose name was
Kicken, to trade two olive-drab shirts, size 16-32, for it. He
and the sergeant thereupon returned to the squadron area and went
to the squadron supply tent. Accused entered the tent and in a
- few minutes came out with two shirts which were the property of the

Squadron Supply. They returned to the shop and accused exchanged

the shirts for the pistol (R7-9). ,

On 26 October 1944, accused again came to the squadron
supply office and asked Sergeant Bryant to help him open some cases
of ten-in-one rations which were the property of.the Squadron Supply
and were stored in the supply office. The cases were marked "10-
in-1" and "U,S.Army", Accused said he had "a deal on" for approxi-
mately one hundred packages of cigarettes and that the rations were
his only source of supply. They proceeded to open ten cases of the
rations and removed from them forty or fifty bars of chocolate and
100 packages each containing ten cigarettes. Accused m ?}oned
that as long as the major,didn't see them open anythlnggi 4
all right. He then tock the candy and cigarettes and drove to a
camera store in St. Trond. He entered the store, carrying the cigar<
ettes and chocolate, and emerged some time later without the clgar-
ettes and candy, but with a camera (R9-12),

It was stipulatedlﬁetween the parties that the two shiita
and the candy and cigarettes alleged to have been misapplied by ac-
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cused were of the value descrlbed in the specifications (R7)

4. Accused after being warned of his rights by the presi-

dent of the court, elected to take the stand and testify under .
oath (R13), He stated that at the time of the alleged offense,
he was Squadron Supply and Transportation Officer and that the
Squadron Supply was under his jurisdiction., He specifically
stated that he made no denial of the charges and specifications
and admitted that he wrongfully disposed of ‘property of the
United States Government. He also admitted having exchanged the
candy and cigarettes described by the prosecution with one Emmy
Blanckertfbr a camera. No money was involved in this transaction,
but in connection with his acquisition of the nistol, he paild

- Kicken 1300 francs in addition to the two shirts. He disclaimed
any intent of "deceiving" the government and was umaware at the
time that he was doing anything wrong (R13-15).

. In behalf of accused, excerpts from his record were read
. to the court, showing that he had been a commissioned officer for
18 months, had graduated from the Yale School of Commmications,
and had had ratings varying from "very satisfactory" to "superior®
prior to the time of commission of the offenses charged (R12-13),

5. The elements of the offenses charged under Article of
War 94 (Charge I, Specifications 1 and 2) are admitted in the
pleas of gullty, and furthermore, are fully proved by the evidence
introduced by the prosecution and by the testimony of sccused,
Hence there is no doubt that the record of trial is legally suffi- -
cient to sustain the findings of guilty of this Charge end its
apecifications.

With respect to Charge II, it is apparent that the speci-
fications thereto should have been lald under Article of War 94 ‘
rather that Article of War 83. There is no allegation that accused,
in the words of the statute, "willfully, or through neglect" suffered
military property to be M"wrongfully disposed of", but rather it is
alleged that he himself did "wrongfully dispose® of such property by
barter. In other words, the specifications, which follow the fornm
provided in the Manual for Courts-Martial for viclations of Article
of War 94 (MCM, 1928, Appendix 4, p.252), allege the direct com-
mission by accused of a wrongful disposition of government property.
~ Vhile originally, Article of War 83 or its earlier counterpart de-

. nounced offenses of thls character, it has been "practically super-
seded" in this respect by Article of War 94 (Winthrop's Military
Law and Precedents (Reprint 1920) p.558). Hence, it is the latter -
Article under which the specifications should have been charged in -
this instance. Allegations merely to the effect that accused
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"wrongfully disposed" of military property by barter are insuffi-
cient for the purpose of charging that such wrongful disposition
was comitted either "willfully" or "through neglectt 3.5 required
by the article (See CM 217868, Schiedinger, 11 B.R.329). However,
838 previously stated, the specifications properly set forth
violations of Article of War 94 and hence, the designation of the
wrong article is not materisl in this case (CM ETO 5032, Brown and
Finnie). All elements of the offenses thus charged are adequately
proved by the prosecution's evidence and accused's testimony, and,
in addition, are admitted by the pleas of gullty.

6. The charge sheet shows that accused is 23 years and three
months of age., He enlisted 31 July 1942 at Fort Sheridan, Illinois,
and was commissioned second lieutensnt, Army of the United States,
20 May 1943, at AAFTTC Yale University, New Haven, Connecticut. He
had no prior service,

7. The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of
the person and offenses. No errors injuriously affecting the sube
stantial rights of accused were committed during the trial. The
Board of Review is of the opinion that the record of trial is ’
legally sufficlent to support the findings of guilty of Charge I
and the specifications thereof, legally sufficient to support the
£indings of gullty of Charge II and the specifications thereof in
violation of Article of War 94, and legally sufficient to support
the sentence, ' -

8, Dismissal, total forfeitures and confinement at hard labor
for two years are authorized, in the case of” an officer, as s penalty
for violation of Article of War 94. The designation of Eastern _
Branch, United States Disciplinary Barracks, Greenhaven, New York,
as the place of confinement is proper (AW 42 and Cir.210, ¥D, 14
Sept. 1943, sec.VI, as amended).

@’& L “ﬁﬁ Z%M Judge Advocate

lﬂagggﬁm C‘ &ammm&ge Advocate

4
5) 0/ 4(/ 2:/ I 2 Judge Advocate
/ o
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1st Ind,

War Department, Branch Office of The Jfggﬁ lﬂd‘gqgte General with
the Ewropean Theater of Operations. “<i T0s Commanding
General, European Theater of Operations, APO 887, U, S, Army,

1. In the case of Second Lieutenant LOREN R. STEELE (0-862103),
379th Air Service Squadron, 74th Service Group, attention is invited
to the foregoing holding by the Board of Review that the record of
trial is legally sufficient to support the findings of guilty of
Charge I and the specifications thereof, legally sufficient to sup-

" ‘port the findings of guilty of Charge II and the specifications

thereof in violation of Article of War 94, and legally sufficlent
to support the sentence. Under the provisions of Article of War 50%,
You now have authority to order execution of the sentence.

2. TWhen copies of the published order are forwarded to this
office, they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this
indorsement., The file number of the record in this office is CM ETO
9421, For convenlience of reference please place that number in
brackets at the end of the order: (CM ETO 9421). .

e

E. C. McNEIL,
Brigadier General, United States Army,
Asalstant Judge Advocate General,

( sentence ordered executeds GCMO 189, ETO, 30 May 1945),

RZYPY
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General

with the
European Theater of Operations
APO 887
‘BOARD OF REVIEW NO. 2 18 MAY 1045

CM ETO 9422

UNITED STATES ADVANCE. SECTION, COMMUNICATIONS
: - ZONE,EUROPEAN THEATER OF '
v. OPERATIONS
Sergeant CLETE 0. NORRIS
.(37082314), 3384th Quarter-

master Truck Company

Trial by GCM, convened at
Verviers, Belgium, 9 February
1945. Sentence: .To be hanged
by the neck until dead.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

‘ HOLDING by BOARD OF REVIEW NO, 2
VAN BENSCHOTEN, HILL and JULIAN, Judge Advocates

l. The record of trial in the case of the soldier
named above has been examined by the Board of Review and
the Board submits this, its holding, to the Assistant
Judge Advocate General in charge of the Branch Office
of The Judge Advocate General with the European Theater
of Operations.

2. Accused was tried upon the following Charge and
Specification:

CHARGE: Violation of the 92nd Article of War,

Specification: 1In that Sergeant Clete 0.
Norris, 3384th Quartermaster Truck
Company, did, at or near Boelhe,
Belgium, on or aboutyé January 1945
with malice aforethought, willfully,
deliberately, feloniously, unlawfully
and with premeditation, klll one
Captain William E. McDonald, a human
being, by shooting him with a gun.

CMT:E; ‘ -‘9422
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He pleaded not guilty and, all members of the court present
when the vote was taken concurring, was found guilty of the
Charge and Specification., No evidence of previous convictions:
was introduced. All members of the court present when the ’
vote was taken concurring, he was sentenced to be hanged by

" the neck until dead. The reviewing authority, the Commanding
General, Advance Section, Communications Zone, European
Theater of Operations, approved the sentence and forwarded

the record of trial for action under Article of War 48.

The confirming authority, the Commanding General, European
Theater of Operations, confirmed the sentence and withheld

the order directing the execution thereof pursuant to

Article of War 50%, :

‘ 3. The 3384th Quartermaster Truck Company, to which
all witnesses belonged except two medical and one military
police officer, was quartered in a chateau some 150 yards
from a cafe, at Boelhe, Belgium, on 6 January 1945 (R13).
Accused, Technician Fifth Grade Stevenson, Private John

W. Nelson and a number of other soldiers from his unit were
in Sergeant Lignon's room on the evening of 6 January
(R12,29,30). While there, about nine o‘'clock Nelson gave
Stevenson a pistol (R7,12S a P .38 similar to Prosecution's
Exnibit A (R29,33) with loaded magazine (R8).,- Nelson found
the pistol next morning under the pillow of his bed (R7,8,9).
While checking the guards between 10 and 11 o'clock that
night, loud talking was heard in the direction of the cafe;
and the sergeant of the guard, on going to the cafe, found
accused (R13,21) with other of the unit (R22,27,29) drinking,
playing with their weapons (R14,19) and having a good time.
Accused and Stevenson seemed more intoxicated than the others
(R13,19), but accused was not staggering (R20) and talked
coherently (R21). The sergeant attempted to get accused

and the other men to leave the cafe ahd accused pointed his
gun at him (R14,19), Stevenson had a P.38 (R14,17) fully
loaded which accused took and refused to return to him (R29).
The majority of the men left at the sergeant's request and,
after another drinlk or two, accused finally left carrying
both the pistol and his carbine (R14,17,13,20). Shortly
after, what sounded like a pistol shot was heard (R14)

and about five (R195) or ten (R22) minutes later, Captaln
fcDonald came in and at his orders the rest of the men

left the cafe (R23). It was a dark night with plenty of

CORL g L
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snow. A little way down the road the last ones leaving .
the cafe met two people (R15,24) and continuing arrived
in camp just after 11 o'clock.

: About ten minutes later, one shot was heard and
a few minutes later, three more. Someone shouted that
Captain McDonald had been shot and on rushing to the cafe
they found two carbines and a helmet outside and Captain
McDonald where he had been carried in and layed on a sofa
(R16). The helmet had two bars on it (R17). On examina-
tion at the hospital, where Captain licDonald was taken
unconscious, it was found that he had a penetrating wound
-on the right side of the head from which he died (R25),
at 0545 hours 9 January 1945 (R26). Death-was caused by
the gun shot wound penetrating the brain and which could
have been made by a bullet from a P.38 (R25) or a carbing
. (R26). Stevenson with some one else was secen on the road
about half way from the cafe to the chateau by some of
the soldiers leaving the cafe that night about ten o'clock.
Stevenson was standing against the curb facing the road
with another soldier who did not answer when spoken to
and who was not recognized (R27-28).

Stevenson testified he left the cafe about eleven
o'clock - with accused who turned arocund and went back
towards the cafe after they had gone about halfway and
then caught up with him again about five minutes later
as he got to the camp gate. Accused had his carbine and
the pistol (R31,34). They had met Captain McDonald just
as they entered the road to return to camp and he had
taken Stevenson's carbine and told them to go on to cam
(R31). Shortly after accused.turned and went back (R32),
Stevenson stopped and turned around when he saw a light
come on (R32,34) and heard some one say halt. He then
heard a shot (R32) and saw the flash (R34) and heard some=-
thing like a steel helmet or metal fall (R32). The flash~
light was burning when the pistol was fired and was then
immediately dropped (R37). Accused then caught up to him
"walking a 1little fast" and said (R33) "Here is your pistol"
(R34), "Come on, I am going to bed" (R33). Stevenson
could not identify the individual holding the light when
it came on and did not know where accused was at that time.

The light was 12 or 15 feet from the cafe (R36). He,ger-
- sonally put the pigol back under Nelson's pillow (R37).

3422
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. Privates Toomer and Sullivan were on duty that
night from ten till 12 o'clock as guards at the entrance
to the chateau, They could hear loud talking at the cafe
(R41,43) and could recognize accused's voice. About 11:15
Captain McDonald came by and went towards the cafe and
shortly thereafter some 18 or 20 fellows, came through the
gate. About ten minutes later, they heard a shot and a
helmet fall., Stevenson whom Toomer recognized from his
voice -(R41,42,43) and another fellow (R4l), whom Toomer
didn't recognize (R42,43) but whom Sullivan said was
accused (R45,47), came in through the post (R41-43,4%,47).
Some man came by and said the Captain had been shot (R43).
Toomer fired his carbine (R43) twice (R46) and both went
to the cafe where they found Captain ¥cDonald lying on
his back beslde the cafe. Sullivan laid his carbine beside
the Captain (R46) whose helmet and rifle also lay nearby

. (R47) and they carried him into the cafe (R46). Outside
the cafe where the accident happened, two carbines were
found near a pool of blood together with a steel helmet
with captain's bars (R49) identified as that of Captain
McDonald (R50), the helmet having a hole in it (R49). A
bullet mark was found on the building and a slug out of

~a weapon (R48). :

First Lieutenant Ernest F., Liebmann, Commanding
Officer in the 10th Military Police Battalion, investigated
the shooting of Captaln KcDonald and was present when accused
made a signed, sworn statement (R51) on 11 January 1945,
which statement was admitted in evidence as Prosecution's
Exhibit G (R52), the body of which reads as follows:

"On the nite of Jan 6, 1945, the nite of

the shooting - that is the only way I can
remember it - 4 I was in Sgt Ligon's room -
during the early part of the evening We
were drinking 2 bottles of Cognac and some
beer, There were probably eight or nine

of us drinking it. I had quite a bit to
drink, and I was feeling good when I left,
I went over to the Cafe where the trouble
“happened and started drinking Cognac and
beer there. There were a lot of our boys
there I can remember Pvt Knight, Sgt Newman,
Pvt Patton, T/5-Jesse Stevenson, and Pvi -~
Ogelsby. I took my carbine to the Cafe

9422
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with me. I do not remember ever taking it

off my shoulder. I drank for a while in the
front barroom, and I remember the lady there
dancing with Pvt Bryan I think it was. I
later went back to the kitchen and seeing

Sgt Newman there and also Stevenson and Patton,
I remember going back to the front room again
with Stevenson, I don't recall how I got

the pistols I had been drinking too much.

I remember walking out the door with the
plstol but I don't remember how I got from
Stevenson or what I did with it while inside
the cafe, 1 can remember Stevenson trying

to get me to leave the cafe; we finally left
through the side door. I had the pistol in
my right hand as I went out, After I.was
outside I fired once and then again a short

" distance farther on, I don't know why I did
it, but I did., Stevenson and I then started
walking up the road towards camp, I don't
remember giving Stevenson my carbine., I
remember meeting someone coming down the road
and Stevenson mentioned Capt McDonald. We
started on up the road againj I don't remember
dropping the pistol., I know I stopped, turned
around and started walking back towards the
Cafe. I walked down near the Cafe when some-
one shone a flashlight in my face. I raised
the pistol and fired it at the perscn holding
the flashlight, I can't remember anything
being said by myself or the person I shot at -
Captain McDonald., I then saw a light falling
and I heard a helmet strike the walk, I
turned without . looking at the person I had
shot and ran on-and caught up to Steve. I

did not know it was the Captain I had shot,
but I knew he was down at the Cafe,

When I caught up to Stevenson, we went back to
Camp through the guard gate-Post #2. I can't’
recall just what I did with the pistol. The
next thing I can remember is sitting in the
~orderly room while they were questioning the

other men. I had drunk a lot that evening,
and I cannot remember everything I did., 1

-5 -
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do remember firing the pistol at the person

near the Cafe who flashed the light in my

face., I didn't intend to kill anyone, and

it must have been the drink which made me do
%t.thThis is all I can remember, and it is the
ruth,

/s/ Clete 0. Nyrris" (Pros.Ex.G).

4., As a witness for the defense, Stevenson testified
that they drank a quart of cognac in Sergeant Lignon's room
on the evening in question; accused was there drinking and
he later saw him in the cafe where

"he was talking a little loud * * *, He
acted like he was drunk. He had a little
too much anyway" (R54).

He staggered a 1little (R54). Although they had no arguments,
accused pointed a pistol at himj; later they left the cafe
together and started up the road and accused stopped. W¥hen
he later caught up with him again, Stevenson asked accused
what went on and accused answered, "Come on, I am going

to bed". He walked like he had been drinking but "was

still on his feet" (R55). °

Sergeant Wiley M. Newman, a good friend of accused
(R98), saw him drinking in the cafe that night and acting
a little bit intoxicated (R56,57) and told him to leave
(R57) which accused did after taking another drink (R56).
Accused had gone when Captain McDonald came in the cafe

(R57).

Sergeant John W, Jones saw accused take four drinks
of cognac at the cafe that night. He was "wobbling" and
took two drinks just before he left the cafe. Jones later
saw accused standing, with Stevenson, about 25 yards from
the cafe (R58-60). '

Second Lieutenant Eugene H. Swanzey testified that
though accused's efficiency was good as a noncommissioned
officer, he "had heard things that would lead me to believe
that friction could exist" between accused and the company
commander (R60). ,

-6 -
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Accused on being advised of his rights as a witness,
elected to remain silent (Ré61-62).

5. lurder is the unlawful killing of a human being
with malice aforethought. To prove the offense it must be
proved that it was so committed (uCM, 1928, par.148a,
pp.162-164). The evidence indicates and the accused admits
that he shot Captain kcDonald. The only question requiring
consideration is whether there was "malice aforethoughtt,

“"ifalice does not necessarily mean hatred or
personal 1ll-will toward the person killed,
nor an actual intent to take his life, or
even to take anyone's life,- The use of
the word 'aforethought' does not mean that
the malice mist exist for any particular

" time before the commission of the act, or
that the intention to kill must have pre-
viously existed. It i1s sufficient that
it exist at the time the act is committed"
(Ibid., p.163). :

Malice aforethought may exist when the act is unpremeditated
and it 1s murder, malice being presumed or inferred, where
death is caused by the intentioral and unlawful use of a
deadly weapon in a deadly manner, providing in all cases
there are no circumstances serving to mitigate, excuse or
© Justify the -act.

"In order that the implication of malice
may arise from the use of a deadly weapon
it must appear that its we was wiliful or
intentional, or deliberate. This, like
other matters of intent, is to be gathered
from the circumstances of the case, such
as the fact that accused had the weapon
prepared for use, or that it was used in
such a manner that the natural, ordinary
and probable result would be to take life™
(29 ¢.J., sec.74, p.1101).

Accused had been drinking during the evening and was
apparently feeling some of the effects cf it. He, with the
other soldiers, had been ordered out of the cafe and he at
least was loathe to leave for he refused to go until he had
consumed = at least one more drink. The inference 1s

7. 19422
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reasonable that after he had gone a short way towards camp
. wlth Stevenson, he decided to return to the cafe for another
drink.and as he approached the cafe he was halted and a
flashlight thrown on him., He had left the place earlier
carrylng a pistol in his hand. When halted by the person
with the flashlight, he raised and fired his pistol at the
person stopping him but when the light was -immediately
dropped and he heard the helmet strike the ground, he
hurriedly returned to Stevenson, thrust the pistol in his
~hand and announced that he was going to bed. He fled from
the scene of the crime, got rid of the weapon used and
.retired from the picture as quickly and quietly as possible.
He had committed murder (CM ETO 3585, Pygate; CM ETO 7253,

Hopper; CM ETO 9291, Clay).

While accused had been drinking, he walked without
difficulty, his speech was coherent and he unquesticnably
knew what he was doing. His recollection of events of the
night is eclear, Voluntary intoxication doces not excuse
but may be shown in mitigation. The guestion of whether
-accused was so intoxicated that he could not have entertained
the necessary intent to make the act .murder, was cone of fact
for determination by the court. 1In the absence of substantial,
competent evidence that he was so intoxicated, the findings
of the court were fully justified (CM ETO 2007, Harris, Jr.;

~ CM ETO 7253, Hopper).

6. The charge sheet shows accused to be 26 years and
ten months of age and that he was inducted 25 September 1941,
at Jefferson Barracks, Missourl, He had no prior service,

7. The court was .legally constituted and had jurisdic-
tion of the person and offense. No errcrs injuriously affecting
the substantial rights of the accused were committed during
the trial. The Board of Review is of the opinion that the
‘record of trial is legally sufficient to support the findings

of guilty and the senternce. .

8. The penalty for murder is death or life impriscnment
as the court-martial may direct (AW 92). ,

w &a
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1st Ind. '

War Department, Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the European Theater of Operations. 8MAY 18

* TO: Commanding General, European Theater of Operations,
APO 887, U, S. Army.

1. In the case of Sergeant CLETE O, NORRIS (37082314),
3384th Guartermaster Truck Company, attention is invited
to the foregoing holding by the Board of-Review that the
record of trial is legally sufficient to support the findings
of guilty and the sentence, which holding is hereby approved.
Under the provisions of Article of Var 50%, you now have
authority to order execution of the sentence.

2. When coples of the published order are forwarded
to this office, they should be accompanied by the foregoing
holding, this indorsement, and the record of trial which
is delivered to you herewith. The file number of the record
in this office 1is CK &TO 9422, For convenience of reference,
%lease place that number in brackets at the end of the order:

Cl ETO 9422). .

3. Should the sentence as imposed by the court and con-
firmed by you be carried into execution, it 1s requested that .
a full copy of the proceedings be forwarded to this office

in order that its fil/es%be complete,
4 :
; . .,]/ 2 éé%2u$f7f'

. "E.C. McNEIL, A
Brigadier General, United States Army,
-Assistanht Judge Advocate General..

( sentence ordered executed. GCMO 174, ETO, 26 Mgy 1945),

CNRETRT
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‘ qupch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
.Buropean Theater of Operations
APO 887
BOARD OF REVIZW NO. 1 ' SR P

CM ETO 9423

UNITED STATES

. v L
: - Chaudfonteine, Belgium,
Captain EUGENE J. CARR
(0- 22905), Company C
158th Engineer Comba%
Battalion

Dismissal and. total for-
feitures,

Nl Ml N\ P N NN

' HOLDING by BOARD OF REVIEW NO. 1
RITER, BURROW and STEVENS, Judge Advocates

1. The record of trial in the case of the officer
named above has been examined by the Board of Review and
the Board submits this, its holding, to the Assistant
Judge Advocate General in charge of the Branch Office of
The Judge Advocate General with the European Theater of
Operations.

2. Accused was tried’ upon the following Charge and
Specification..

CHARGE: Vioclation of the 85th.Article of War.

Specificationt - In that Captain Eugene J.
Carry Company C, One Hundred Fifty-
Eighth Engineer Combat Battalion, was,
in the vicinity of Floreffe, Belgium
.on or about 24 December 1944, found
drunk while on duty as Commanding
Officer of Company C, One Hundred Fifty-
Eighth Engineer Combat Battalion,

FIRST UNITED STATES ARLY
Trial by GCM, convened at

22 February 1945. Sentence:

He pleaded not guilty to and was found guilty of the Charge
and Specification., Evidence was introduced of three previous

convictions by general courts-martial, one for violation

-1 -
CONHIDENTIAL
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‘the 96th Article of War on 16 February 1943 with sentence

of reprimand and forfeiture, one for violation of the 96th
Article of War on 18 April 1943 with sentence of reprimand .
and forfeiture, and one for violation of the 95th-and 96th -

Articles of War on 14 February 1944 with sentence of dis-
missal, which sentence was suspended.

He was sentenced to be dismissed the service, to
forfeit all pay and allowances due or to become due, and -
to be confined at hard labor, at such place as the reviewing
authority may direct, for five years. The reviewing
authority, the Commanding General, First United States
Army, approved the sentence, but because of evidence
showing to his satisfaction that accused, though not in-
sane, was not wholly responsible for his actions at the
time of the commission of the offense, remitted the con-
finement and forwarded the record of trial for action under
Article of War 48, The Commanding General, European Theater
of Operations, confirmed the sentence as approved, and with-
held the order directing the execution thereof pursuant to
Article of War 50%, -

3. Prosecution's evidence proved the following facts:
On 24 December 1944, accused was the Commanding

Officer of Company C, 158th Engineer Combat Battalion (R18).
On that date, the battalion bivouacked at Floreffe, Belgium,
and was in the course of being reorganized and re-equipped
after strenuous operations in and about Bastogne during the
German mid-December 1944 offensive (R21; Cf: CM ETO 7413,
Gogol). At about 1930 hours on that date, accused and-
other officers of the battalion consumed an unstated amount
of intoxicating liguor (R7). - -

At approximately 2315 hours, accused was seen by
his battalion executive officer, Major John A. Bailey. He
carried the odor of alcohol on his breath, but

"he was quite steady and rational in
every respect * * * and he did not
appear to have lost control of him-
self" (R15).

9423
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He then asked permission to attend mid-night mass, which re-
quest was granted (R15). About 15 minutes later, Major
Bailey received a report that accused was creating a dis-
turbance in the quarters of one of the platoons of Company
B (R15,17). He went to the barracks and discovered accused
in the care of a sergeant and other enlisted men who were
attempting to remove him to his quarters (R15).

"He was irrational, having illusions, he
was giving orders to the men to alert
themselves, to various non-coms to alert
thelr particular platoons or companies.
He was apparently in a different world
from the rest of us" (R17).

Major Balley, saw "that Captain Carr was not himself" and
"decided to try to humor him along®. He informed him the
battalion was "alerted and would soon be ready to move out",
-and thereby induced him to go to the battalion command post
with Major Balley, where for some time accused looked at maps.
However, when the radio stopped, he showed he was under the
hallucination that it was the only means of communication
and ordered it to ‘be repaired at once. After about thirty
minutes, Major Balley persuaded him to go to bed and es-
corted him to his quartefs upon the promise that the bat-
talion would be alerted (R16). Accused, however, did not
go to bed (R1l6),. but talked irrationally and annoyed other
‘officers who were in bed (R14)., Major Balley, upon hearing
that accused was again disorderly, returned to the quarters
- and ordered accused to bed. Fellow officers undressed him
but he "crawled into bed on his own power" (R1l6). .

‘ Witnesses who observed accused during the period
between 2300 hours and the time he was ordered to bed by
Major Bailey described his condition as "pretty good" but
that he didn't know "what he was talking about" (R8);
"intoxicated" (R9); "drunk" (R11l,12); VYintoxicated the way
he looked" (R13); and "definitely intoxicated". He wasn't
rational® (Rlé?.‘ C : v

4, Evidence for the defense summarizes as follows:

Lieutenant Colonel Sam Tabet, commanding officer
of the 158th Engineer Combat Battalion, described in detail
the activities of the battalion between 17 December and 24
December 1944, It was engaged in combat with the enemy in

- 3 -
 CBE ICEHTIAL
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and around Bastogne during the German offensive and Company
C under accused's command performed vitally important
missions. With respect to accused's conduct he testified:

. )

"Captain Carr at that time left nothing
that I would desire in a company com-
mander, He did such an excellent job
that we recommended him for a Silver
Star" (R20). ) ' :

Accused stated he understood nis rights clearly,
and elected to be sworn as a witness on his own behalf
(R22). He gave a vivid description of the combat activi-
ties of his company and of himself from 17 December 1944
(the day following the commencement of the German offen-
sive) to Christmas Eve in the fighting in the proximity
of Bastogne. His chief mission was to protect a vital
railroad bridge across the Wiltz river and to cover the
withdrawal of the battalion on 22 December. In regard to
the episode of Christmas Eve he testified:

"7ell, it was Christmas Eve and the Colonel
invited me around for a drink or two. We
gathered up all of the officers of the
Battalion, All of the officers were
bivonaced in this one room and we gathered
up there and had a few drinks" (R25).

He declared he did not remember anything of importance with
respect to subsequent events (R25).

"I was awakered the following morning by
the Group Surgeon who informed me that
I was after some cheerful talk, that I
was going to the hospital" (R25).

Lieutenant Colonel William G. Srodes, Medical Corps,
consultant in neuro-psychiatry in the office of the Surgeon,
First United States Army, testified that in a person suffer-
ing from battle fatigue, there could develop a sensitivity
to alcohol (R26). In response to a hypothetical question
propounded by defense counsel which included a recital of
accused's battlefield activity of six days duration prior
to 24 December and the substance of prosecution's evidence,
Lieutenant Colonel Srodes expressed the opinion that -

e 8423




GO TIOENTIAL

(21)

"The alcohol could act as a trigger
mechanism releasing an unusual response
to gtimull and a relatively small amount
of alecchol in an individual who had the
strain and vho was susceptible to the
strain could react in that way " (R28).

5. The evidence i1s definite and uncontradicted that
accused, on the evening of 24 December 1944, drank liquor
until he was in a highly intoxicated corndition. “hether
he was naturally hypersensitive to alcohol or whether his
extreme 1intoxicatlon was induced by battle fatigue were
-matters wholly outside of the scope of inquiry by the
court on the issue of accused's drunkenness.

"Any intoxication which is sufficient
sensibly to impair the rational and full
exercise of the mental and physical
facultles 1s drunkenness within the
meaning of the article" (MCM, 1928,
par.l45, p.160).

The evidence as to accused's conduct and condition at the
time and place alleged is convineing that he was drunk within
the meaning of the ©5th Article of War, The 1ssue of drunk-
enness was essentlially one of fact and the finding of the
court, being supported by substantial evidence, is binding

on the Board of Review on appellate review (CM ETO 1065,
Stratton; CM ETO 1267, Bailes; CM ETO 1952, Lewis; CM ETO
3577, Teufel; CM ETO 4184, Heil; CM ETO 4619, Traub; CM ETO
4803, Jacksonj; CM ETO 5453, Day; CM ETO 5767, Palmer).

The only important question for determination is
whether accused, when he became 1lntoxicated, was "on duty"
within the meaning of that term in the 85th Article of War.

"In time of war and in a region of active’
hostilities the circumstances are often
such. that all imembers of a command may
properly be consldered as being contlinuously
on duty within the meaning of this Article
@ucM, 1928, par.145, p.160).

9423
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"Again, in time of war, and especially in the
field before the enemy, the status of being
on duty, in the sense of this Article, may
be uninterrupted for very considerable periods.
As remarked by the reviewing authority, in
approving a conviction of an officer under
the Article early in the late war, - fan
officer, when his regiment is in front of
the enemy, 1s at all times on duty.' 1In a
more recent Order of the War Department,
in the case of an officer found drunk while
on duty in command of a company 'on an expe-
dition against hostlile Indians,! it was held
by the Secretary of War that - 'the nature of
the service and the safety of the command
certainly constitute this a duty in the sense
of the Article'" (Winthrop's Military Law
and Precedents (Reprint, 1920) p.614).

Commencing on 17 December 1944, accused's battalion
was engaged in active combat with the enemy. It had with-
drawn on 23 December to Floreffe (R8) to reorganize and re-
equip. The Board of Review will take judicial notice of the
fact that in this-territory at this time the Germans were
engaged in their mid-December offensive (CM ETO 7413, Gogol,
supra). Accused was commander of Company C. He had not
been relieved from this duty and was acting in this capacity
on Christmas Eve at the time he became intoxicated. The
fact that the battalion executive officer, Major Bailey,
gave him permission to attend midnight mass immediately
prior to the period when hils intoxication became manifest,
did not relieve him from his duty status, The following
guotation 1s appropriate: <

"It would be unrealistic and a denial of
the factual situation to conclude that
/the/ order to accused removed him from
a 'duty status' and temporarily placed
him on an 'off duty' status until he re-
ceived further orders * * *, which would
serve to restore him to a 'duty status.!
Oppositely the evidence compels the con-
clusion that he remaired 'on duty' during
the interval" (CM ETO 3577, Teufel).

The Board of Review is of the opirion that the record of
trial is legally sufficient to support the findings of
guilty (CM ETO 3302, Pyle; CM ETO 3304, De Mott; CM ETO
3714, Whalen; CII ETO 3725, Cox; CM ETO 4339, Kizinski;
CM ETO 5010, Glover). ,

Ak AL
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6. The charge sheet shows that accused is 28 years,
one month of age, and was a cadet at the Upited States
Military Academy from 1 July 1936 to 11 June 1940, when
he was commissioned 1n the Regular Army. .

7. The court was legally constituted and had juris-
diction of the person and offense., No errcrs injuriously
affecting the substantial rights of accused were committed
during the trial. The Board of Revlew is of the opinion
that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support
the findings of guilty and the sentence.

8. A sentence of dismissal 1s mandatory upon a con-
viction of Article of War 85 in time of War (AW 85; MCV,
1928, par.103, p.92), and forfeiture of all pay and allow-
ances due or to become due 1s a proper added punishment

(AW 85).

‘. . o
4 s . . -
/{"l é ___Judge Advocate
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War Department, Branch Office of The Judge Advocate
with the European Theater of Operations. 'SMM 14
T0: Commanding General, EBuropean Theater of Operations,
APO 887, U. S. Army. ‘

1. In the case of Captain EUGENE J. CARR (0-22905),
‘Company C, 158th Engineer Combat Battalion, attention is
invited to the foregoing holding of the Board of Review
that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support
the findings of gullty and the sentence, which holding is
hereby approved. Under the provisions of Article of War
50%, you now have authority to order execution of the
sentence as confirmed by you.

2. When coples of the published order are forwarded
. to this office, they should be accompanied by the foregoing
holding and this indorsement, The file number of the
record in this office is CM ETO 9423, TFor convenience
of reference, please place that number in brackets at the

end of the order: (CH Ey? , p
L, LAl cp

' . C. McNEIL,
g Brigadier General, United States Army
~ Assistant Judge Advocate General

( Sentence ordered executed.GCMO 146, ETO, i7 May 1945).

CORFIDENTIAL
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General

with the
Buropean Theater of Operations
APO 887 ,
. AT
BOARD OF REVIEW 10, 1 26 APR 19
CM ETO 9424
UNITED STATES ) 2ND AIR DIVISION
)
Ve )  Trial by GCM, convened at AAF Station
) 120, APO 558, U, S. Army, (England),
Private GEORGE E. SMITH, JR. )  8-12 January 1945. Sentence: To be
-(33288266), 784th Bombardment ) hanged by the neck until dead.
Squadron, 466th Bombardment ) .
Group (HS ) -

HOLDING by BOARD OF REVIEW NO. 1
RITER, BURROW and STEVENS, Judge Advocates

14

1. The record of trial in the case of the soldier nsmed above has
been examined by the Board of Review, and the Board submits this, lts
holding, to the Assistant Judge Advocate General in charge of the Branch
Qffice of the Judge Advocate General with the European Theater of Opera-
tions,

2. Accused was tried upon the following Charge and Specification:
CHARGE: Violation of the 92nd Article of Var,

Specification: 1In that Private George E. Smith,
Jr., 784th Bonbardment Squadron, 466th
Bombardment Grolp (H), did, at Honingham, Norfolk,
England, on or about 3 December- 1944, with
malice aforethought, wilfully, deliberately,
feloniously, unlawfully, and with premedita-
tion, kill one Eric Teichman, a human being,
by shooting him with a rifle,

He pleaded not gullty and, all of the members of the court preseht at the
WA
9424
~1- :
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. time the vote was taken conclirring, was found guilty of the Charge and
Specification.  Evidence was introduced of one previous conviction by
special court-martial for being disorderly in uniform in a public place
in violation of the,96th Article of War. All of the members of the
court present at the time the vote was taken concurring, he was sen-
tenced to be hanged by the neck until dead. The reviewing authority,
the Commanding General, 2nd Air Division, approved the sentence and
forwarded the record of triel for action under Article of War 48. The
confirming authority, the Commanding General, European Theater of Opera-
tions, cenfirmed the sentence and withheld the order directing execution
thereof pursuant' to Article of War 50%.

3. The following facts proved by the prosecution are undisputed:

At about 1330 hours on Sunday, 3 December 1944, accused and
Private Leonard S, Wojtacha, 6lst Station Complement, 466th Bombardment
Group, left thelr proper station at Attlebridge Airdrome, near Honingham,
Norfolk, England, for the purpose of hunting (R36,37,93; Pros.Ex.11).
Each carried a .30 caliber issue carbine and ammmition (R37). After
proceeding sbout a quarter of a mile, each fired several rounds at an
0il drum in a field (R37,38; Pros.Ex.11). Not far beyond this point
accused fired at a cow which then "started runing around with one of
its front legs up in the air®, Vhen WoJtacha asked him the reason for
the act, he did not answer. He was laughing (R47,51). They entered
the woods on the estate of Sir Eric Telchman, passed near his house on
an old abandoned road, and began firing at a squirrel (R37; Pros.Ex.11),
The squirrel jumped from tree to tree as they shot, and they followed
it until they reached a tree near the top of ahgill (R38; Pros.Ex.11).
This point was about a mile from the airdrome% about 300 yards east of
and in front of Sir Eric's home (R13,14,19,55,83,107). It was ina
wooded area, overgrown with bracken or underbrush about three feet
high (R15,16,22,23,59,62,105). It required the two soldiers about 45
minutes to walk that distance, and accused was happy and laughing dur-
ing the trip (R40,51). :

At about 1400 hours, Sir Eric, who had finished his noonday
meal a few minutes before, heard the shots and informed his wife that
he was going to investigate (R10). He was last seen alive by members
of his household as he left his home and walked down the drive (R11).
He was a man in good health of about 60 years .of age, but badly stooped
or hunchbacked (R11,12,25,27). His normal height would have been six
: feets but due to yis deformity he was no more than about five feet tall

R12 . . I'4

Sir Eric cameupon accused and Wojtacha as they stood .on
opposite sides of the tree about 30 feet apart looking up into the
branches for the squirrel (R.48,49; Pros.Ex.11). Accused told Wo}tacha,
"Look out., There is an old man behind you" (R38,48,49). Wojtacha glanced -
over his shoulder, saw Sir Eric about 15 feet behind him, walking forward

9424
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"slumped over", and carrying a cane (R38,40,48,49). Accused never
noticed the cane, presumably because of the underbrush. (£96,100;
Pros.Ex.12). Wojtacha started walking towards accused. ‘hen he was
abreast of him and few feet to his right, he heard Sir Eric say

"just & minute, What are your names?" (R38,49,50). He heard accused
say, "Get back, Fop" and then almost immediately the firing of a

shot (R39,50). Accused had fired with the gun from his hip {Pros.
Ex.11). Sir Eric slumped to the ground face downward at & distance variously
estimated as between eight and A2 feet from accused (R39,49,50; 54,1053
Pros.Ex.11). Fither accused or Wojtacha said "Let us get out of here"
(R39;Pros.Ex.11). The two left rather hastily (Pros.Ex,11).

Accused did not remember the words between him and Sir Eric,
nor did ojtacha see the actual killing, as he was looking at neither
accused nor Sir Eric at the time (R39; Pros.Ex.11). He saw him immedi-
ately afterwards, however (R39,40). There is no evidence that accused
was acquainted with or recognized Sir Eric and he never indicated he
had any fear of him (R106). The ground between sccused and Sir Fric
was nearly level but sloped slightly up tovards Sir Eric (R38,60,84).

On the return trip to the airdrome, VWojtacha was frightened,
but accused was happy, calm, gay and normal (R51). They passed near
an old man walking with a dog. “ojtacha said "There is the old man
walking down the road". Accused's answer was: "I must have missed
him, I should have shot him again" (R40,51; Pros.Ex.1l). As- they
walked along, accused broke off a twig and pushed it into his gun
barrel either to clean or to jam it, ‘hen it snapped, he said "low I
have got my troubles" (R40,51; Pros.Ex,11). The two reached accused's
barracks at 1450 hours, hid the guns under a table in another soldier's
room, visited accused's room for five minutes, and parted cormpany (E40-
41,50), Accused lay on his bunk, calm and smiling (R52). ‘

‘ihen Sir Fric did not return for tea, searches were begun at
about 1700 hours but his body was not found until about midnight. le
. had been dead for many hours, and apparently never moved zfter he was
hit (k12-14, 18-20,26,32,56,59,83,107). An autopsy the next day re-
vealed the bullet had entered his right cheek, shattered the jaw com-
pletely, was deflected downward by two vertebrae in the neck, broke
two ribs and passed out of the body under his left shoulder blade (R25,
26,58,107). 1t was not such a wound as could have been caused by a
spent (slow moving) bullet (R30). The bullet was found covered with
blood next to Sir Eric's skin beneath his undershirt (R57,58,108). It
was the cause of death (R28). There were no powder burns, which in-
dicated that the gun was more than six feet away when the shot was
fired (R29,30). The autopsy also revealed that he had eaten a feal
less than an hour before his death (R27).

On the morning of 4 Decerber 1944, all ren in accused's
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organizetion were ordered to turn in their arms. Accused surrendered
the carbirne orlginally issued *o him, numbered 2036239 and bearing his
name., It had a piece of weed stalk jammed in the barrel (F70-79)

On 5 December accused came up to Wojtacha's table at the mess
hall and told him "Don't say any1h1np. Let them find out for themselves"
(F41). .

The Provost Iarshal learned that accused and Viojtacha had gone
hunting cduring the afternoon in guestion (rRy5). ©On 6 December, he con-
fronted Vojtacha with this evidence and with casts of footsteps made at
the scene of the crime (F43 L4 . Wojtacha was scared and made a full
statement (R45,91). The next morning accused was told he would be
charged with murder and was being warned of his rights when he inter-
rupted to say "I shot him", After careful further warning he made a
complete written confession which was received in evidence (R87,90,91,
93,107,109,110; Pros.Ex,11). Accused was calm, did not appear frightened,
and acted in a normal mamner (190,111). In the confession, his story
coincides exactly with the account herein, although he did state that
at some time during the day before 1300 hours he had drunk about 15
coffee cups of beer.

During the afternocon, Wojtacha and accused voluntarily took
the Provost llarshall and civilian officials over the route they had
followed on 3 December %0 the scene of the shooting. They reenacted
the events preceding the killing,,and the crime itself (R100-103). The

. drum was found with bullet holes in it; emnty shells were picked up
where they sald they shot at the drum and also vhere accused shot at
the cow (R100,110). Accused was calm, co-operative and friendly towards
Vlojtacha (R102).

Subsequently, the accused's carbine and the bullet found on
Sir Eric's body were examined by a ballistics expert, Dr. Henry Smith
Holden, Director of the Home Ofiice Laboratory at Nottingham, England.
After study and comparison with test shots, he was satisfied beyond
reasonasble doubt, that the bullet was fired from accused's carblne,
munber 2036239 (R57,61,67,111-113; Prox.Ex.15).

4. The sccused, after ris rights were fully explained to him,
elected to remain silent (R241,242). ;

The evidence for the defense vas as follows:

Accused's score on the Army General Classification Test was only
67, which placed him among the lower 15 or 20 per cent in his organiza=
tion. He had six convictions by courts-martial (R118).- He once cut off
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the tails of two pet white mice because he thought they would look
cute with bob tails, though he was usually kind to them (R125,127,
142). He once kicked his dog to quiet him, but he was ordinarily
fond of him and careful to provide food and water (R125,1/1). He
was unusually fond of pets (RlAO,lAl). Sometimnes he slept on the
"floor by the fire instead of in his bed, saying it was warmer there
(R125,129,145,148). He was tidy in his room, took pride in his
appearance, and was alweys shining his buttons and polishing his shoes
(R139,1AO). He never sat down to eat at the mess where he worked,
. but always "grabbed a sandwich"(R150). He occasionally stood and
stared into space (R1%1,155,161,168). He once became angry at a
smoking stove and took it from the room (R150), To salvage a pair
of new shoes because he did not like rubber soles, he cut the soles
off, but continued to wear the shoes and did not turn them in to
the supply office (R144,146,160,190,191). He did not go out with
his fellows, or play cards or go with girls (R128,140). He was con-
sidered a normal, happy soldier and was well liked (R127,130,137,
145,156,163), but inclined to be excitable and raise his voice (R159,
1625. Once when he was struck in an argument, he threatened to get
a cleaver for use against his asssilant, but did not (R159). Accused
had 17 tattoo markings on his body (R242,243). He was a good worker
(R168). His service record shows his religion as Protestant (R118),

At 1600 hours on 3 December accused was seen lying awake on
his bed (R142). Later he went to sleep {R130). At gbout 1700 hours
there was a rumor that Sir Eric had been killed. Accused having been
awakened, broke into the conversation about the rumor to say: "Haybe
its a good thing the old bastard is dead" (R143,146,147). Accused
was acting normally and did not appear worried (R143,144). Shortly
. thereafter he went to the home of civilian friends, who had invited
him the day before. There he ate hearily, played the gramaphonse,
whisteled and danced about, and was to all appearances entirely happy.,
He played with the dog, had it "play dead", and played with the cat.
There was nothing unusual in his behavior (R129-124). He left about
2030 hours, and until 2200 hours visited a public house, where he
drank a beer or two and behaved normally. (R134,136). Around 2330
hours he was ordered from the mess hall because he was unkempt in
appearance and slightly drunk (R122,123). The next morning he was
calm and normal (R126,145). The investigating officer testified that
accused was calm and collected, though voluble at the investigatiocn
(R171). In jail, he was happy and cooperative, and apparently gained
sbout 15 pounds (R180). There at the suggestion of his defense coun-
sel he wrote a number of essays. These were introduced in evidence
and reveal incoherency, illiteracy and someviciousness (R188;Def.Fxs.
B-I). While in jail accused was visited by a-Catholic chaplain, and
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convinced him of his Catholia faith., He told the chaplain, however,
*that he had made no statement to the authorities about the shooting
and two weeks later admitted this was a lie (R173-179).

The defensé presented evidence by a farmer that his cow
‘was,in fact, shot in the left leg at some time after 1200 on 3 Decem-
ber and before the next morning ? R184,185).

Major Leo Alexander, Medical Corps, Chief of Psychiatric
Section, 65th General Hospital, examined accused on 2, 4 and 5 January
1945, and diagnosed his condition as:

#(1) Constitutional psychopathic state,
with inadequate and immsture personal-
ity, emotional instability, schizoid -
traeits, and explosive (poorly repressed)

" primative-sadistic agressiveness;severe, N
(2) Mental deficiency, borderline,
mental age nine years., In older psychi-
. atric terminology.....Mentally defective,
homicidal degenerate™ (R195,200).

In this doctor's opinion, the accused knew right from wrong, but was
not impressed with the seriousness of the difference (R200,205). His
ability to adhere to the right was impaired, but not necessarily de-
stroyed (R205,206)., He was not insane (R202 214)}. The average
mental age of the Army is 14 yesrs(R208). A psychopath is a person
who has a defective personality, and "schizoid" means "crazy" (R198).
Accused had crazy tralts, or a split personality partly withdrawn
from reality, but no organic disease of the brain (R198,206). His
condition was due to mental deficiency, and lack of morasl restraint
or inhibitions to restrain his sadistic subconscious emotions (R201,
209 210). Because of heredity and environment, he had little will
or intellect to repress these emotions (R206,210). He fired almost
automatically as suited His emotion at the moment (R202,203).
he had feared punishment he would not have fired (R210). That is
why his ability to adhere to the right was only impaired, not abolished,
and the reason the impulse was not irresistible (R202,205,211; Def., -
Ex.J). His emotion was to kill the squirrel, and the killing urge
which inhibitions did not restrain, was transferred suddenly but not
automatically to the man who interfered with his wishes (R°Ol-203 209~
- 210). The accused secured an emotional gain from the killing, from
flaunting it before the investigating officer, and from his predica-
ment at the trial (R211). He was dangerous, might have killed men,
before, and would probebly do so again if left at large (R204,217).
Drinking liquor would reduce his conscious restraint against subcon-
scious emotions (R201)." He bordered on insanity (R204), but his
;r;m;na})responsibility, though impaired, was not abolished (R202;
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liajor Thomas A& March, Medical Corps, Chief of Neuropsychiatry,
231st Statlon Hospital, examined accused 8 December 1944 and 2 January
1945 (R219,225). His diagnosis of accused's condition was: "Constitu-
tional psychopathic state; inadequate personality asnd schizoid tendencies
* or traits" (R232). In his opinion accused knew right from wrong, and
had the ability, though somewhat impaired, to adhere to the right (R223, .
226,233; Def,Ex.K). His will to adhere to the right was tainted not
with insanity, but by abnormal emotional tendencies (R228,234). Accused's
actions were subject to poor control and faulty judgement, and he had
homicidal tendencies (R223,233; Def.Ex.K).

- Dr, John V, Morris, Medical Superintendent of the Norfolk
County Mental Deficiency Institutions, examined accused on 1 end 3
January 1945 (R235,236). His diagnosis was:s ™Schizophrenia" (R236;Def.
Exs.N,0). In his opinion, the conditton of accused was such that he
might at times be able to distinguish right from wrong, but if he had
an impulse to do something wrong, he would not have enough control or
ressoning power to resist. He was subject to uncontrollable impulses
(R239; Def.Ex.0). In this case, the deceased interfered with accused's
pleasure and he fired the shot on uncontrollable impulse, irrespective
- of consequences to himself or to society (R239,240). Accused is an
anti-soclal type, without regret of the killing, and whose permanent
restraint is necessary (R238,240), His testimony was that the brain
of accused is diseased, and that he suffers from early Schizophrenia
(R240), He did not state whether he considered him "sane" or "insane"
. in those exact words. ' :

5., There are several evidential questions to be considered:

a. The court admitted photographs of the body as discovered
at the site of the homicide and of the renactment of the erime by the
accused and Wojtacha (R66,101-103,110;Pros.Exs.2-7,13,14). The defense
did not object., As to the former, there was no prejudicial inflamma-
tory effect (Seadlund v. United States(CCA 7th 1938§ 97 F. (2nd) 742).
Concerning photographs of reenactments of crimes and accidents to show
a version thereof disputed by the opposing party, the authorities are
in conflict as to admissibility (Ammotation, 27 A.L.R. 913). Some
courts leave the matter within the court's discretion (United Verde
Ext., Mining Co. v. Jordan (CCA 9th 1926) 14 F. (2nd) 304, cert.
denied, 273 U. S. 734, 71 L.Ed. 865 (1926); Sprinkle v. Davis (CCA
4th 1940), 111 F.(2nd$ 925). ‘here such photographs are faithful re-
productions of uncontradicted testimony, as in this .case, they are
clearly admissible: '

"If the photographs * * % portrayed
. conditions as they actually were,
and agbout which there was no dis-
pute, they would be competent®
(Nunnelly v. Muth, 195 Ky. 352, ~
242 8.W. 622, 27 A.L.R. 910 (1922)). B
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be. The testimony of the ballistics expert, due to his illness
at the time of trlal, was introduced by stipulation. Accused by his af-
firmative action in agreeing to the stipulation walved his constitutional
right to be confronted by this witness (Rlll-113, Diaz v, United States,
223 U.S. 442, 450, 56 L,Ed.5)0, 503 (1912); Sullivan v. United States (CCA
8th 1925), 7 F. (2nd) 355, cert. denied, 270 U, S. 648, 70 L.Ed.779 (1926);
CMETO 8451, Skinver).

c., ZEvidence of accused's previous convictions by court-martial,
and of the opinion of a psychiatrist that accused might have killed
people before, were elicited by the defense (R93,118,204; Pros.Ex.1l).
They constitute a part of the Insanity defense, and the error, if any ‘
under such circumstances was self-invited and nonpregudlcial (cM E”O 5584,

Yancy). .

\ .

It is concluded therefore that the questions of evidence
were properly resolved,

6., Murder is the killing of a human being with malice aforethought
and without legal justification or excuse. The malice may exist at the
time the act’'is committed and may consist of knowledge that the act which
causes death will probably cause death. or grievous bodily harm (Mcm,
1928, par.l48a, pp.162-164). The law presumes malice where a deadly
weapon is used in a manner likely to and does in fact cause ddath (1
Wharton's Criminal Law (12th Ed., 1932) sec.426, pp.654-655), and an
intent to kill may be inferred from an act of the accused which mani-
fests a reckless disregard of human 1ife (40 CJS, sec.l4, p.905, sec,
790, PP.943-944). :

The evidence shows without any conflict that accused purposely
ghot the deceased without provocation and in no fear of his own safety. -
His motive was to attack the person who interfered with his pleasure.

The confession, admitted in evidence, coincides with the otherwise full
proof of these facts. The defense sought to avold responsibility for .
the acts confessed, on the ground that the accused was insane, and it is
in this point that lies the only issue in the case.

In effect, the two Armw psychlatrists agreed that accused knew
right from wrong, and that he was sane. The civilian psychiatrist testi-
fied that accused might at times be sble to distinguish right from wrong,
but that he could not adhere to the right and in this instance acted up-
on the uncontrollable ‘impulse of a diseased brain. The Army psychiatrists
were of the contrary opinion and testified that accused had the ability,
though somewhat impaired, to adhere to the right, and that his actions
here involved were not guite automatic.

The test as to mental responsibility under military law is

o | 9424
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whether the accused was "so far free from mental defect, disease, or
derangement as to be able concerning the particular acts charged both
to distinguish right from wrong and to adhere to the right" (lCM, 1928,
par.78s, p.63). -

. In applying this rule, the Board of Review had held that it
is no defense to a charge of sodomy that an accused homosexual had
difficulty in adhering to the right (CM ETO 3717, Farrington). In
the case of a constitutional psychopath who.was accused of rape and -
murder, evidence that he was sane and had the ability to adhere to the
right was held sufficient to sustain conviction, even though he had

+difficulty in so adhering and had only "partial responsibility" (CM-

ETO 5747, Harrison). ~ .

These declsions, binding here, are supported by the rules of,
the civil courts. = Subnormal mentality not constituting legal irres-
ponsibility is no defense to crime (14 Am. Jur., sec.32, pp.788,789;
State v. James, 96 N.J.L.,132,114 At1.553, 16_ALR 1141 (1921); Annota-
tion, 44 ALR 584). "It is the duty of /such/ men who are not insane
or idiotic to.control their evil passions and violent tempers or brutal
ingtincts® (Bast v. Commonwealth, 12/ Ky.747, 99SW 978). For an ac-.
cused to be absolved from responsibility, it is necessary that

"his will, * % % the governing
power of his mind, has been
otherwlse than voluntarily so : -
completely destroyed that his
actions are not subject to it,
but are beyond his control" o .
(Davis v. United States, 165 : '
U. s. 373, 378, 41 L.Ed.750,
754, (18975,.underscoring sup-
. lied). ’ ‘

Moral insanity and irresistible impulses disconnected from true insanity,
are invalid as defenses (1 Wharton's Criminal law (12th Ed.1932), secs.
60-64;pp.84+93} : Annotation 70. AR 659)

In the instant case, there is competent evidence that accused
was sane, and that he could adhere with difficulty to the right. His
" abilit§°to adhere, according to that testimony, was impaired because he
had no moral restraint. A powerful restraint to crime, other than moral,
is fear of punishment. Those same persons whose will power is weakened
to the extent of being without consclence, gonstitute the class who need
the latter restraint most. To fail to punish a murderer, whom the cowrt's .
findings place among that malevolent group who find it hard to do right,
is to encourage and not to deter crime, ”

It i not.for the Board of Review to weigh evidence, and in
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view of the feco;d, it must conclude that the court properly found .
on the competent evidence adduced, that the accused was legally sane.

.. 7. The charge'éheet shows that accused is 27 years eight months
of age and was inducted 13 August 1942 at Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, to
serve  for the duration of the war and six months.

8. The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the
person and offense. No errors injuriously affecting the substantial
rights of accused were committed during the trial. The Board of Review
is of the opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to -

' support the findings of guilty and the sentence,

9. The penalty for murder is death or life 1mprisonment, as the
court-martial may direct (A7 92),

% Qﬂ. /Hé Judge Adyocate

/ Z 4\%1’ Judge Advocate
‘ %/—/4/ Z . M‘;} Judge Advocate .
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1st Ind. ,

War Department, Branch Office of The Judge Advocate Genersl with the
European Theater of Operations. 9@ APR 1945 = T0: Commanding
General, European Theater of Operations, APO 887, U, S, Army.~

1. In the case of Private GEORGE E. SMITH, JR. (33283266),
784th Bombardment Squadron, 466th Bombardment Group (H), attention
is invited to the foregoing holding by the Board of Review that the
record of trial is legally sufficient to support the findings of
gullty and the sentence, which holding is hereby approved. Under
the provisions of Article of War 50}, you now have authority to order
execution of the sentence.

2. Yhen coples of the published order are forwarded to this
office, they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding, this
indorsement, and the record of trial which is delivered to you here=-
with., The file mumber of the record in this office is Cii ETO 9424.
For convenience of reference, please place that mumber in brackets
at the end of the order: (Cl ETO 9424). . .

3. Should the sentence as impased:by the court and confirmed
by you be carried into execution,. £ is requegted that a full copy
of the proceedings be forwardegk 6 this office”dn order that-its
files may be complete, \;? L -

Cad v
1 \\ N "‘i’:x

. 5 PN
f S A e
& %/ ZE{éL:ﬁ

E. C. McNETL,
Brigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate Ceneral,

N

( sentence ordered ezecuted, GCMO 128, ETO, 1 “Qy 19454)
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
Zuropean Theater of Operations .

LPO 887

BOARD OF RGVIZ7 NO. 2 . '
2 6 MAY 1945
CM ZTO 9461 :

' BRITTANY BASE SECTION (successor .
of LOIRE SECTION), CGUUNICATIONS
ZONS, EUROPZAN THEATER OF CPERATIONS

UNITED "STATES
Ve
Private First Class LENARD

BRYANT (34552389), 3117th
Quartermaster Service Company

Trial by GCM, convened at Le Mans,
France, 14 October 1944, Sentence:
Dishonorable discharge, total far-
feitures and confinement at hard
labor for life., United States Peni-
tentiary, lLewisburg, Pennsylvania.

N Nl et Nl e NV e S e Nt

HOLDING by BOARD OF RZVIZW NO, 2
VAN BENSCHOTEN, HILL and JULIAN, Judge Advocates

l. The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above
has been examined by the Board of Review,

2. Accused was tried upon the following Charge and Specification:
CHARGE: Violation of the 92nd Article of Ware

Specification: In that Private First Class Lenard
Bryant, 3117th Quartermaster Service Company,
did at or rear a spot on National Highway 157
about 15 Kilometers toward Bouloire from
LeMans, France, on or about 28 September 1944
forcibly and feloniously, against her will,
have carnal knowledge of Madame Eliane Scalvino,

He pleaded not guilty and, three-fourths of the members of the court
présent when the vote was taken concurring, was found guilty of the
Charge and Specification. No evidence of previous convictions was
introduceds Three=fourths of the members of the court present at the
time the vote was taken concurring, he was sentenced to be dishonorably
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discharged the service, to forfeit all pay and allowances due or to
become due and to be confined at hard labor, at such place as the re-
viewing authority may direct, for the term of his matural life. The
reviewing authority approved the sentence, designated the United
States Penitentiary, Lewisburg, Pennsylvania, as the place of con-
finement and forwarded the record of trial for action pursuant to
Article of War 50%.

3+ The evidence for the prosecution as related by the 32-year-
old prosecutrix shows that at five pm on 28 September 1944, she was
proceeding along the road towards her residence at Bouloire when she
was thrown in a ditch by accused and then dragged into the nearby
woods (R6). As she was shouting for help accused prevented her from
cerying by putting his fingers upon her mouth. He held her very tightly
around her mouth, She could not breathe freely., Her neck was sore
for two days (R6,17). ‘hen accused approached her she called "help,
help" several times (R6). She struggled, losing an earring, and her
skirt was tarn on the left side (R6). Accused was drunk. (R15),

Accused was accompanied by two others, a black negro and a
mulatto, but otherwise the road was deserted (R6). She was dragged
about 50 meters into the woods by the three soldiers, and by gestures
made to understand .that she was to lay on the ground (R7). Accused
produced a knife (Pros. Zx.,1l) from his pocket, placed the fingers of
his left hand on the blade of the closed knife and frightened prose-
cutrix into compliance with his desires (R6,7). Accused returned the
knife to his pocket long enough to get on top of her when his turn.
came, and at one point he knelt before her and again took the lknife
out of his pocket. She was Mafraid for my life" and snatched the
knife out of his hande When accused got on top of her he unbuttoned
his trouser flap and penetrated her vagina with his penis (R8,10),
She yielded only because she was afraid of being killed (R15).

¥hen they were all finished prosecutrix ran to the road
where she met a civilian motorcyclist (R9), In her hand she carried
her panties, two shoes, a harmonica and the knife (R10)s The motor-
cyclist directed her to a motorcycle military policeman stopped about
10 meters from thems She apprised him of -her difficulty by gestures armd
he unsuccessfully attempted to get the three soldiers’out of the woods,
Assistance was received from a second motorcycle military policeman,
who entered the woods armed with a revolver and brought one soldier
out (R10,18,23), who was identified as the accused (R19,23).

On cross-examination, she testified she was pushed into the
woods by accused and his friends, one holding her on each side, and

one walking behind her (R14). She was roughly treated from the
beginning, feared for her life and so yielded to their desires (R1lL4),
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lying down as directed as she was afraid of being killed or choked (R15).
She was in the woods about an hour and a half with the three soldiers
about 50 meters from the road but did not cry for help or attempt to
escape earlier for fear of being killed or choked (R15). She denied
positively that any money was offered to or accepted by her (R78,79).

A military policeman, who had stopped his motorcycle on
this highway in order to eat his supper, testified he heard a woman
crying in the woods (R18) and stood up and saw a woman come running
from about 30 yards back in the woods. She ran towards a pascing
civilian, who directed her to him, Her face was marked and swollen
on the right side (R18,23); she was crying, nervous and hysterlcal
and he had to support her to keep her from falling to the ground (R19,23).
Another military policeman, who actually went into the woods after the
accused, corroborated the testimony of the preceding witness (R23),
adding that at the time he first saw accused the fly of his trousers
was unbuttoned (R23)., He identified the prosecutrix as the hysterical
woman (R23), saw the other military policeman supporting her at the time
of this occurrence (R25), and he took accused and her to military police
headquarters in Le Mans (R23).

An American Army doctor, who examined the prosecutrix several
hours after the alleged rape, found her extremely nervous and upset.
There were several rather short, broad, shallow scratches about the
level of the nose on her right cheek, several fresh bruises on the
lateral aspects of both hips amd two or three very superficial, ex-
tremely narrow scratch marks on the anterior surface of both thighs,
Examination of the genitalia revealed neither external or internal
violence, There was considerable tenderness of the constrictor muscles
of the vagina, lMicroscopic examination of the vaginal contents did
not disclose the presence of any spermatozoa (R27). It was impossible
for him to state whether prosecutrix had recently engaged in sexual
intercourse (R27,28).

After an agent of the Criminal Investigation Division
testified as to its woluntary. nature (R32), a confession signed by
the accused was received in evidence over objection by defense
counsel (R63,6L4, Pros., Ex.2). The accused testified that the CID
agent "Jarred me with his pistol'" - "He punched me" and said "!'I am
tired of hearing you lying ™, then he hit me again, hit me in the :
stomach with his fist® (RABS These charges by accused are cate=
gorically denied by the agent, who took the disputed statement from
accused, and by another agent who was present at the time (R52-61).

In this statement accused relates that he grabbed the girl by one arm;
she struggled, attempting to get away; he and two others pulled her
towards the wods and they fell into a ditch; they picked her up from
the ground, and pulled her towards the woods near the highway; when
they reached the woods he and his two companions had sexual intercourse
with her. :
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Le After his rlghts were fully explained to him, accused
elected to be sworn and testified in his own behalf. He related
that on the afternoon in question he and two companions were drinking
cognac and cider when the prosecutrix happened along (R66,67). He
asked her to engage in sexual intercourse at the same time showing
her 100 francs (R67,68). He caught her by the hand and they went
about 50 yards into the woods, where he gave her the 100 francs
which she accepted, and he proceeded to have intercourse with her
(R68), He wasn't successful in this first attempt and after a short
while he again covered the prosecutrix and engaged in the act (R68,69).
By representing that she had to urinate, the woman got away and ran
Mhollering" to the road (R69). Some time after this a military
policeman apprelanded him in the woods and took him' to military
police headquarters (R69).

] A medical officer, called by the defense, testified that
a blood alcohol determination test performed on accused about 2000
hours; 28 September, showed a result of 3.7 milligrams per cc,

He further testified that a level of 3,7 indicates intoxication
by well recognized medical criterions; the standard ordinarily ac-
cepted being 1.5 milligrams per cc. (R77).

5« The evidence established by the testimony of the victim,
the admissions of accused and in the confession accused made to
the CID agent, beyonddubt the first element of the crime of rape,
viz., carnal knowledge of Madame Scalvino by the accused (CM ETO
3933 Ferguson and Rorie).

If accused accomplished the act of intercourse by force,
and without the consent of the prosecutrix the crime of rape is
complete, The prosecutrix testified she yielded to accused be-
cause he threatened her with a knife, maltreated her generally
and she was '"much afrald for my life', This is in part corroborated
by the confession of accused in vhich he stated he grabbed the girl
by one armj she tried to get away and did put up a struggle; he and
two others pulled her towards the woods and they fell into a ditch
in the process, ‘Further support for the victim's version of the

_inciden. is found in the evidence of her prompt complaint to the
military policeman, the testimony of two members of the military
pelice and an Army doctar as to her hysterical condition immediately
after the acts tomplained of, and the presence of bruises and
scratches on her person, . )

‘ Opposed to the foregoing is accused!s sworn testimony at .
the trial in which he relates a story of assignation for a monetary
concideration, There was, therefore, presented an issue of fact to .
be considered and determined by the court. By its findings the
court has resolved this issue against accused and the Board of Review
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is of the opinion there is competent, substantial evidence to support
the court's findings. Inasmuch as it was within the exclusive
province of the court to determine this issue of fact, it will not

be disturbed by this Board upon appellate review (CM ETO L4194, Scott).

The sharp conflict between the evidence of the prosecution
and that of the accused with respect to securihg his confession also
presented an issue of fact as to its voluntary. character, Inasmuch
as the validity of the confession is supported by very substantial
evidence in the record, the ruling of the law member admitting it in
evidence will not be disturbed (Ci 270 4055, Ackerman).

When accused's rights as a witness had beerr explained to
h:’un, the law member inquired if there were any questions by either
of the colored members of the courts 1In response thereto a meuber
-of the court volunteered his professional opinion (professional
psychologist) as to accused's mental capability to understand his
rights under Article of War 24 (R36). This was irregular, but if
it was at all harmful, the prosecution and not accused was prejudiced.

. 6. The charge sheet shows that accused is 2 years and one
month of age and was inducted 29 Cctober 1942 at Fort Bennett,
Georgia., No prior service is shown.

7. The court was legally constituted and had jwisdiction of
the person and offense, No errors injuriously affecting the sub-
stantial rights of accused were committed during the trial. The
Board of Review is of the opinion that the record of trial is legally
sufficient to support the findings of guilty and the sentence,

8, The penalty for rape is death or life imprisonment as the
court-martial may diregt (AW 92)s Confinement in a penitentiary is
authorized upon conviction of rape by Article of War 42 and sections
278 and 330, Federal Criminal Code (18 USCA 457,567)e The designation
of the United States Penitentiary, Lewisburg, Pennsylvania as the
place of confinement is proper (Cir.229, WD, 8 June 1944, sec.II,

pars.1p(4), 3b).
MMM évﬂ L~>  Judge Advocate
mw Judge Advocate

OM A w, .0144 Judge Advocate
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General

with the !
European Theater of Operations

APO 887
BOARD OF REVIEW KO, 1 1 6 JUN ]q45 -
CM ETO 9467
UNITED STATES ) CHANNEL BASE SECTION, -

) COMMUNICATIONS ZONE, EUROPEAN
Ve ; THEATER OF OPERATIONS

Private First Class MAURICE ) Trial by GCM, convened at Rouen,

- Do ROBY (32319390), 433rd ) Seine Inferieure, France, 2 March
Ordnance Motor Vehicle Assembly ) 1945, Sentences, Dishonorable dis-
Company (Portable) ) charge, total forfeitures and con=

: ) finement at hard labor for life,
) United States Penitentiary,
) Lewisburg, Pennsylvania,

HOLDING by BOARD OF REVIEW NO, 1
RITER, BURROW and STEVENS, Judge Advocates

l. The record of trial in the case of the scldier named above ha.s
been examined by the Board of Review,

2. Accused was tried upon the following Charge and Specification:
CHARGEs Violation of the 92nd Article of War,

Specifications: ~ In that Private First Class Maurice
D. Roby, 433rd Ordnance Motor Vehicle Assembly
Company (Portable) did, at Post No, 1, Depot
0-652, Rouen, France, on or sbout 0005 hours,

22 Decémber, 1944, with malice aforethought,
willfully, deliberately, feloniously, unlawfully,
and with premeditation kill one Private Thomsas
F. Kirkpatrick, a humsn being by shooting him
with a carbine,

He pleaded not guilty and, all of the members of the court present at -
the time the vote was taken concurring, was found guilty of the Charge
and Specification. No evidence of previous convictions was introduced,
All of the members of the court present at the time the vote was tsken

-1-
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concurring, he was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the service,
to forfeit all pay and allowances due or to become due, and to be cone
fined at hard labor, at such place as the reviewing authority may direct,
for the term of his natural life. The reviewing authomty approved the
sentence, deslgnated the United States Penitentiary, Lewisburg,
Pernnsylvania, as the place of confinement, and forwarded the record of
trial for action under Article of War 50k,

3+ Prosecution's evidence, without contradiction showed that accused
shot and killed Private Thomas F. Kirkpatrick at Depot 0=652 Rouen,. :
France sbout 0005 hours on 22 December 1944, Accused, as a witness on

his omn behalf, admitted the homicide and that he was the responsible

‘agent therefor (R26,27),"

@ Accused and deceased were, on the date aforesaid, members
of the permanent guard of Depot 0-652, Accused was actually on duty at
Post No, 1 - the entrance gate of the installation - having relieved
deceased from gusrd duty about two hours previously. Deceased had
been absent from the station and returned a few minutes prior to the
homicide, Accused and deceased engaged in a verbal dispute as to the
form of entry to be placed in the guard book with respect to a motor
vehicle which had come to the gate of the depot camp but had not entered
it., They stood at the end of a wooden platform near the guardhouse
(R11,14,15), In the course of the conversation between the two soldiers,
accused exclaimed: . °

"I'11 show you who is guard (R7)"I'm on guard
and I*11 do as I please" (R11),

Prosecution's witness, Private Francis X, Siebert described ensuing events
thuss

® % # % Kirkpatrick ﬁeceasey started to walk
towards the guardhouse, about that time Roby
accused/ backed of sbout eight feet from the
guardhouse, and when he started to count, he
said, 'When I count three you better be gone!
* % % At the count of one, he 81id the bolt
of the cerbine and put a round in the chamber,
Two, he brought the rifle dowmm and aimed it
at Kirkpatrick, and at three he fired"(R12),

"At the time when Priyate Roby made the state-
ment, /the two men werﬁ about two feet apart,
And as soon as Private Roby made the statement,
he started to back off, and when he did, he

was sbout eight feet from where Kirkpatrick

was standing * * % when Roby made the remark

he would count, Kirkpatrick turred arowmd and
started to walk towards -- it wasn't a complete

LR IAL 9457
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about face, because the move made more or

less a right face to walk toward the entrance
of the guardhouse when Roby backed off toward
the middle of the road and Kirkpatrick started
to walk to the guerdhouse while Roby counted®
(R17), , '

When the shot was fired Eirkpatrick was walking away from Roby toward
the guerdhouse (R17). As deceased fell, Private Armand D, Gerard
endeavored to grab him but accused shouted "Leave him alone®, De=
ceased moaned and moved slightly and then was guiet (R7), Gerard
corroborated Siebertts testimony in principal part (R7,9,10).

The bullet entered decessedfs body on its left side, passed
through the sixth rib and lodged in the pulmonary artery from where it
was removed (R23; Pros.Fx,l)s He died as a result of .

"hemorrhage following multiple perforations
of the vacular system by gun shot, Death
mst have been almost immediate, consider-
ing the large vessels involved" (Pros Ex.1).

Neither accused nor deceased was under the influence of alcohol or
drvgs at the time of the homicide (R11,18,23),

Le Acc\used, as a witness on his own behalf, described the events
of the homicide as followss '

"He called me a cock-sucker, and we were swear-
ing back and forth ‘at one another, And he was .
pushing me backwards,
* C* *
Kirkpatrick was fairly high when he was doing
his arguing with me, He was not in a jovial

- mood, but pretty antagonistic" (R26,27§ .

He further asserted that he did not intend to fire; that he never com-
pleted the Mcount of three™; that "the gun had gone off the meanwhile®;
that he manipulated the bolt of his carbine and placed a shell in the
chamber merely "to scare® deceassed and denied he leveled the gun at
him, but declared he held it at port arms with his hands grasping it
parallel to his waist (R28),~

Technician Fourth Grade Francis J. S. Konleczny of accusedfs.
organization testified that while he was in bed about 75 to 100 yards
from the guardhouse on the night of 21-22 December 1944, he heard
"the count given of One - Two, and a shot fired" (R24,25).

5¢ The circumstances surrounding the homicide present two questions
for considerations (&) whether accused killed decessed in self~defense,

CONTIDENTIAL
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and if not (b) whether the killing was under such circumstances as to

.. reduce the degree of homicide from murder to voluntary msnslaughter,

- The court resolved all conflicts in the evidence agaminst accused. The
Board of Review will examine the record of trial to determine if the
court!s findings are supportsd by competent, substantial evidence (CM

-ETO 895, Dgvis, et alr CM ETO 9194, Presberry)e

a‘. The rule of law controlling the instant situation is
stated thuat . .

Lt "To excuse a killing on the ground of self-
, defense upon a sudden affray the killing

must have been belleved on reasonshle jrounds
"by the person doing the killing to be necessary
to save his life or the lives of those whon
he was then bound to protect or to prevent
great bodily harm to himself or them, The danger
mst be belleved on reascnable grounds to be
imminent, and no necessity will exist until the
person, if not in hls own house, has retreated
as far as he safely can. To avail himself of
the right of self-defense the person doing the
killing must not have been the aggressor and
intentlonally provoked the difficulty; but.
if after provoking the fight he withdraws in
good faith and his adversary follows and renews
the fight, the latter becomes the aggressor"
(mu’ 1928, par, 148&, P.163).

A mere casual reading of the record of trial will convince any reasonably-
minded person that accused and deceased were engaged in no "sudden affray",
At most it was an exchange of profanity and obscene epithets, Deceased
was unarmed; accused was armed, Accused threatened deceased with violence
and supported his threat by allowing deceased "ths count of three™ within -
which time to leave, Deaeassd then commenced his retreat and with his
back partly turned to accused received the fatal wound in his left side,
Under these circumstances, there were no reasonable grounds for accused
to believe that it was necessary for him to kill deceysed in order to .
save his om life or protect himself from great bodily harm, The theory

" of selfe=defense was a fictitious ons and of no lega.l merit (CM ETO

9194, Presberry, supra)e

-

b, Nelther accused nor deceased was mtoﬁcated. The quarrel
involved no dispute of importance, and it was not a violent one, As
stated above, it was an exehs.nge of profans and obscene epithets,

"At comnon law mere ln.nguaga, ‘however aggravating,

abusive, opprobrious, or indecent, it is not re-
garded as sufficient provocation to arouss e

o nnTIAL
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governsble pasgion which will reduce a homicide
from murder to manalaughter® (26 Am, Jur. sec.29,
P«175; CLs 4O CJS, mec.87, p.,950; ICM, 1928, par.
149;, §.166- CM ETO 2899, Reeyas; CM £TO 6229,

Accused acted deliberately, first by warning deceased and then by
Ycount of three® fixing a time linit for deceased!s departure. Deceased
acted upon the ultimatum and commenced his retreat, When his back was
partly turned to accused the latter shot him, Accusedts actions in
themselves furnished proof of cold-blooded, cruel deliberation and
factual malice, The dividing line between murder and manslaughter in
military jurisprudence is well demonstrated in CM ETO 10338, Lgmb,
wherein the following is quoted with approvals

®Manslaughter is distinguished from murder
by the abeence of deliberation and malice
aforethought” (1 Whartonfs Cpiminal Law
12th Ed., s6c.423, p.640; 20 Fim.Jur 1899,

The inatant case demonstrates clearly the presence of factual malice -
the badge of the mmdersr - in a positive, decisive manmer, This homi-
cide was manifestly murder; not manslaughter (CM ETO 6682, Fragler;

CM ETO 7315, _mgm; CM ETO 11178, Ortix).

* 6o The chargo sheet shows that actused-is 34 years 10 months of *
age and was inducted 20 April 1942 at Fort Jay, New York, to servs for
the duration of the war plus six months.- He had no prior service,

7« The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the
person and the offense, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial
rights of accused were committed during the trisl, The Board of Review
is of the opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficlent to
support the findings of guilty and the sentence.

8, The penalty for murder is death or life inpriaonment as the
court-martial may direct (AW 92), Confinement in a penitentiary is
authorized upon conviction of murder by Article of War 42 and sections
275 and 330, Federal Criminal Code (18 USCA 454,567). The designation
of the United States Penitentiary, Lewisburg, Pernsylvania, as the ,
place of confinement is proper (CirdR2p, }D, 8 June 1944, sec.II, pars.
1b(4), 3b)e

Judge Advocate

W Judgo Advocate
@%/&Z @ ){ Judgo Addvocate
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Bransh Office Qt The Judge Advocats Gcn.rnl

with the
.Buropesn Theater of Oporations
' APO 687 _
- BOAED OF RSVIEW no. ’3. ‘ : 16 JUN 1945

, Ck BTC 9468 -

UNITELED ETATES ADVAKCE SECTICH, RUIICLTIG!ﬁ
- S ' Z0NE, EZUROPZAR &zsaxsa or

. v. orzxlrions., .

Private PRESTOR (QWERS Trial by GCH, convensd at L&o;c,

(34223711), 3544th Quarter= Belgium, 10 February 1945,

master Trnck Company (Trange S¢ntcncot To be hanged by thc

portation Corp-). , neeck nntil dead,

}
)
)
)
)
)

. ROLDING by BOARD OF REVIEW BO. 3 '
SLEEPEB SHERKAN and DEVEY, Judge Advocutol

1. The reecord of trisl in the case of the moldier
named adbove has been examined by the Board of Heview and
the Board submits this, its holding, to the Assiatant
Judge Advocate Gcnoral in charge of the Braneh Office of
The Judge Advooato General with thc Luropean Theater of
: Oporationt.

o 2. Auens-d was tricd upon tho follo-ing Charge -nd
,8poc1t1eationz

CﬂARGEl Violation of the 92nd Article ot war,

8poc1t1eationl In that Privste Prolton‘
. Cwens, 3544th Quartermaster Truck.
Company (7C),‘d1d, at or near Cour-
celles, Belglua on ‘or about 13 January .
1345, with n:licn aforethought, wille.
rully deliberately, feloniously
lawfully and with premeditation 1111
ocne Private Jagod E, Jones, a husan -
bcing, by shootin; hil vlth a gun,

jGONF'\DENW\h - ot 9468
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He rleaded not gullty end, all of the members of the court
present at the tine the vots was taken concurring, was
found guilty of the Chsarge and Specificstion, Evidcnco

was introduced of one previous conviction by summary

sourt for wrongfully and knowinfly'nning gasoline to

‘make fire in violaticn of Article of War 96. All members

of the sourt present at the tirze thevots was taken con-
curring, he was sentenced to . be hanged by the neek until
dead, *ho reviewing authority, the Comzanding General,
Advance Section, Comzmunications Zonse, Eurcpean Theater

of Cperaticns, approved the sentence and forwarded the
, reecord of trial for action under Article of dar 48, The
econfiraing authority, the Cosmxanding Cenaral, European
Theater of Operations, eonfirmed the sentence snd withheld .
the order direating execution thereof pursuant to the pro- -
visions of Article of War 503, ‘ ' -

3 Tho evidence for the prosecution was as roliovun

C About noon cnt 13 January 1945 secused &nd other
soldisrs were shootin% dice in ons of the squad roonms of
the 4129th Cuarterzester Service Company at Courcelles,
Belgium (16,19,23). An argucent arose over & certain

bet which by agresmsnt was referred to Private Jacod E,
Jones, a wmerber of accused's company, for settlement (R19-
20). His decision offended accused who "said scmething
abecut fighting end jumped up". As he did so Jones hit
him and a fist fight between them lasted about two minntes
befcre they wera sepzrated by others present (K6,14,19,20,

, "Accused was bleeding from the mouth or left side
-of his face, described as "very bedly" by one witness and
"iust ‘a lit&lo' by another, ard. carried s big swollen mark
over one eye (R11,14,24,31,36),  Jonss got the detter of
the exchangs of blows (520, and was a 1ittlo larger thad -
agccused and more muscular (R231-24), Ths ztate of accused's
feelings immedistely after the short fight was variously
descridbed by witnesses as "ruffled" (140), "must have dbeen
red" (R15), "more or less excited dy the injustice done to
him" (H40), "I never saw him in a rage 1ikse that dbefore"
.and "mad enough to kill him" (R12), Aecused pleked up
& model 1903 army rifle, which was foroibly taken from
him by Privctes First Cin:s Coosr B, Lewils and Frank
Nckinney, members of his company, &nd 2 half minute (333)
thereafter, he walked to ar ndjoining.rcou and obtaine
a carbine, of which he was disarzed by Lewis after a .
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struzgle in both roocms (K7 14,20—21,32534,37). . Hie then
sat on his bed and 2ai4, n} don't care®, adding, *1'm
gonna k111 that 'mother fucker'* (R8,17). Lewis was
“disgusted® and told doth men they ought to be ashamsd
. of themselves (RE,16), Jones esked, "Are you going to
oat, Lewis?" The latter replied, "Yeah", and the two
won{.dopn to the mess hall together, the meas hall snd .
the kitchen consisting of two separate rooums downstairs
- (R8y21,34), -

‘ About & minute after they left accused.got up
and went to his duffle bag, secured a clip-of ammunition
and put 1t in his pocket €R30). He returned to sit again
on his bed for sbout a half minute (i22) to detween two
and three ainutes (x26,30), then .agzain got up and obtained
his rifle., As Private Henry Taylor, of the sime company
ag accused, observed this move, he hollered to Xekinney,
"Don't let him put the olip 4in 1t*, Mciinney started
toward accdugsed and then backed away as the latter shoved
a ¢lip into the weapon (R22), HRegarding this ineident

. Yekrinney testifidds o S _ ’
®*WYhen he gets up the second time and
gets his rifle &nd puts a olip in thers,

. he put the gun on mej 30 I Just back up

"~ off of there" , .

and continued down the stairs and sald, “No shooting, boy".:

Accused said, "Don't get rough®, A4s kKckinney roachea the’

mess hall in sdvance of accused, he suid, "Jones, Jiggs

look cut® (R30). Accussd was welking pretty fast and ala

nct appear excited. Melinney went on cutside (331)"&;

: Kesnwhile, Jones and Lewis were in the kitchen .
and had been in the wess hall *just long enough for us to
walk downstalire and walk up to the table and ask if they
had snything tc eat - about a minute and a half or two
zinutes” when Lewis, hesrirg someone shout, "Look cut!
Don't shoot that bey!™ (R9,10 15&1?,35,38), broke into

‘"a ran &nd "rot behind the oiior &3 he saw accused coming
in the door hclding a earbine at high port., Jones "ran

~ tovards the gaa cans" which were lined up deside the wall,
but had “no way out® (%39), Lewis heard a shot and saw
Jones on the floor where he also saw blood (R9-10,11,15,
18|2?,38). . - ’ ’

L .
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' Gtaff Sergeent Willlem C, Hague, 4155th (uarter-
xaster Service Company, testified that he was in the ness
hall st the tizme of accused's entrance (k37) and got on .
the floor as the latter came across the room, pulling the
bolt of his carbine so that "one round fell out &nd another
one went in®" (R39). Accused was vary cool and "a little
more composed. Upstairs he was ruffled" (K40f. - Jones

- 4ropped his mess gear and ran towards accused who shot
hia as he held the carbine at his hip (#39). Accused then
went out the door and surrendsred his weapon to another
soldier (i16). - ' : .

, An autopsy waes performad on the body of Jones on
15 Jenuary 1945, which revealed that he had received a
-fatal bullet wocund, the bullet entering his left chast
and coming out through ths lowsr left back, Ko powder
burns were apparent (K4l), The projectile tors the apex
of the left ventricle of the heart causing death (a;zg., -

4, " After being advised of his rights (R42), accused
elected to make an unswora statement, in effeet, that on
13 January 1945 he was on his knee shcoting craps. Jones
struck him and knocied him on the carpet, 3Bloocd on hig
field jackét cama froam his lips, His eye wis swelled up
so he couldn’t ses (R43), L -

5. The svidenee in this canc leaves no reasonadle
doubt that when accused fired his rifle at Jones, he di4
- 80 with the intenticn of killing or causing him grisvous
bodily harm, or with the knowledge that one or the cther
of sueh consequences wculd probably flew from his sst. .
This intent or knewledge, aven in the absence of premedi-
tation, 1s sufficient to supply the "maliee aforethought®
{c niradsto; ez:i:;fion otlnagdor ungcr.lrtigil)gt W;r 92

C¥ ETO 5749, § MCN, 19208, par,1403, p.1631), unless
the killing was eonnittc& in tﬁc hest of sudden passion
caused by adequate provosaticn, In sush case, it would
constitute voluntary manslaughter rather than aurder
(Rﬁ, 192 ’ 9"01‘5!t 99.163-163), _ o R

, - 1t was the funeticn 228 duty of the court.and
the reviewing and confirming asuthorities to weight the
evidence, and deterzine vhethar pagsion under sdequate :
prcvocation not cooled by the pasasing of time reduced the
erime from murder to maaslasughtsr. Its finding of eithar

9468
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.

the groator ‘or the lesser offentze, on the fuotn heroin,
would be legal and appto riate %%giggggg

162 v.5. 313, 40 L,Bd, 9 Os CM-E ﬁhi .
the Bosrd of heview in a proper case ' not be hcaltant
in holding thera is no substantial evidanco of malice

(c: ETO 82, ¥ckengiej Ci ETO 10338, Lamb), the deliberate~
ness of this crire after the quarrel had baon broken off
and accused disarczed, first of a rifle and then a carbine,
precludes distnrbing the tindings upon appellate review
éLCb, 1928, par.l4&a, p.l44, and par.l26s, p.1363 Cx £TO
62, z;;;igz and casos therein cited).

‘ 6. The charge sheet shows that aecuaod is 27 years
&nd four months of age., He was inducted 15 June 1942 to
. serve for the duration of the war pluatlx nonthx. He had

no prior service.r v

7. The court was legally constituted and had juris-
dicttn of the persocn and offensa, Lo errors injuriocusly
affecting the substantial rights of accused were comzitted
during the trial., The Boiard of Review is of the eopinion
, that the record of trial is lezally sufficient to oupport

the find{ngs of guilty and the sentence.

8. The penalty for surder is death or lifc 1lprisen--
gent as the court-martial. - may direct (A% 92), .

JudgeAdvocate:
[ . ‘ .
_MALCOLM C. SHIRYAN  Juage Advoeate

L 7/

B. H. DEWE

Judge Adveocats
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' . 1ﬂt xﬁﬁo a
Yar De artment, Eran@h vffice of The :ndg. Advogste Ceneral
»ith the EBuropesn Thester of Cperaticns. - 16-JUN 1045

201 Comsunding Canaral, ,nrepcan Theater ct ﬁparntlean,
iPQ 88?’ Ve §o Arny.

. 1. In the case of Private PRULTGH UFLES (34223711)
- "3544th ivarterxaster Truck Compsny (Transportaticn Cerp:s
- attenticn 12 1nvited to ine foregoling naldlnf
- Bosrd of Review that ihes rocord of trial is egally
-sufficlent to suppert the findinga of guilty snd the
- gsentence, which holding 1s hereby approved., Under the
. provisions of article of ¥ar 504, you nau have authority
to order n:ceutibn ef thc scntenaa.-

’ 2. The clrcumst&ncas ot this casc feollow the petteran
of a ¥1lling by accuszed ghortly sfiter his quarrel with
deceassd whicn spoears in such eares ap Ci LIC 6652y
E;;;ig;, Ci &%Tv 1042, Cpy, and CY 5T0. 3160,_22;;35, *tn -
each of which necuaea received 8 1ife sentence, - Hecause

of these cases, the past feir record of serviecs of this
acsused,end all the eircazstances surrounding kis cttens-,
ccmnuta‘ton would nct be inapproprznto. '

_ 3+ Fhen. copios of the pudlished order sre rorUtrdod
to this office, they should -be seccapanied by the torcscln;
‘holding, this rdorsesent und the record of trial, whieh
‘43 delivered to you herewith. The file mumder of the
rseord in this office 18 Ci LT0 9468, For convenience
of refarsnce, plesise place that number 1a brackota at ths
cad of the ordora (ca BTU 94(8), ,

: 4, Bhoulc tha snatonco 'Y ] 1uposad by tho court. bc
: carr&nd into execution, it is reguested that a eomplate.
- eopy of the procauairas b furnished thi: o:tzcc 1n ardcr

.that ltu tilcs say bo eo leto. ' .

CE (c, M;NEJ:Z
/ 3/. L HedRIL /

Brigadiyr Gensral, United Statun Arur
. Assistant Jndga Advesate Oensral

( Sentence confirmed but after reconsideration commited to dishonorable
discharge, total forfeitures and confinement for life, Pursuant to
par. 87b, MCM 1928 so much of previous action dated 3 April 1945 as
inconsistent with this action recalled. Sentence as commted ordered
exscuted, GCXO 500, ETO, 23 Oct 1945), '
| 568
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General

with the :
Buropean Theater of. Operations
APO 887 »
BOARD OF RBVIEW NO. 2 25100 1945
Cii ETO 9469
UNITED STATES g 351H INFANTRY DIVISION
V. )  ©rial by GCH, corvened at Sus-
: . ) terseel, Germany, 15 February
- Private ROBERT D. 4LVAREZ ) 1945, Sentence: Dishonorzble
(29554011), Company F, ) discharge, totzl forfeitures,
137th Infantry ) and confinement at hard labor
A ) for 1ife. United States Peni-
) tentiary, Lewisburg, Pennsyl-
) vania, .

HOLDING by BOARD OF REVIEW NO, 2 .
VAN BENSCHOTEN, HILL and JULIAN, Judge Advocates

1. The record of trial in the case of the soldier
named above has been examined by the Board of Heview and
the Board submits this, its holding, to the Assistant
Judge Advocate General in charge of the Branch Office
of The Judge Advocate General with the European Theater
of Operations.

2. Accused was tried upon the following Charge and
specifications:

CHARGE: Violationd the 58th Articls of War.

Specification 1: In that Private Robert D.
Alvarez, Company "r¥", 137th Infantry did,
in the viecinity of Benney, France on or
about 11 September 1944, desert the ser-
vice of the United States by absenting
himself without proper leave from his
organization, with intent to avoid hazard-
ous duty, to wit: combat with the enenmy,
and did remain absent,in desertion until

T sk
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he returned to his organization on or about
23 December 1944, S .

Specification 2: (Disapproved by confipming authority)

He pleaded not guilty and all members of the court present
at the time the vote was taken concurring, was found guilty
of the Charge apd specifications. Evidence was introduced .
of one previous conviction by speeial court-martial for :
absence without leave for ten days in violation of Article
of War 61, 411 members of the court present at the time

the vote was taken concurring, he was sentenced to be shot
to death with musketry. The reviewing authority, the Com-
manding General, 35th Infantry Division, approved the sen-
tence and forwarded the record of trial for action under
Article of War 50% /AW 48/. The confirming authority, the
Commanding General, European Theater of Operations, dis--
approved the findirg of guilty of Specificdtion 2 of the .
Charge, He confirmed the sentence, but due to unusual
circumstances in the case, commuteé It to dishonorable dis-
charge from the service, forfeiture of all qpay and allow-
ances due or to become due, and confinement at hard labor
for the term of his natural life, designated the United
States Pénitentiary, Lewisburg, Pennsylvanin, as the place
of confinement and withheld the order direcming execution

- of the sentence pursuant to Article of War 50%,

3. 7The evidence presented by.the prosecution was sub-"
stantially as follows: R

- Accused is a rifleman in Company F, 137th Infantry.
About 11 September 1944 his company was located on the .
Moselle River (R8,9,13). Prior to this date the company =
had attempted to cross the river but was driven back by
machine gun fire (R9). The company had been told that
their mission was to cross the river (R9) and accused was
present "when they passed the order down" (R14). He was -
present on 11 September 1944 when the river crossing move-
ment was begun, The company went around the side of a -
town, marching in a column and some engineers were golng .
in enother direction, Accused started out with'his unit
in a column, "he got in the wrohg column or something",

did not make the river crossing and was not seen again .
until around 27 December 1944 (R9,13), When they made
the crossing, the company met "very little" enemy. resis-
tance but they all knew the enemy "was out there some-

where" (R13,14). = k
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After the investigating officer testified as to
. 1ts voluntery nature, a sworn statement made by accused :
was received in evidence, defense counsel stating that there
was no objection (R18; "Govt".Ex.C). It is, in pertinent .
part, as follows: | ' ’

’ "I first went AWOL from my Company at the

- : time of the lioselle River crossing about
the 10th or 1lth of September, 1944, I
went to a little town and stayed with some
Seventh Army engineers for quite a while,
I turned myself in around the 4th or 5th
.of December to the Seventh Army P's at

Maricourt",

4, The accused after his riéhts as a witness were fully
explained to him (R18), elected to remain silent and no evi-
dence was introduced in his behalf.

5. The evidence presented by the prosecution estab-
lishes that accused was missing from his company from 11
September 1944 until the latter part of December. This

- 1s sufficlient evidence of the corpus delicti to support
the admission into-evidence of accused's sworn statement
wherein he admits going absent without leave about the 10th
or 11th of September, 1944 (LCli, 1928, par.lld4a, p.ll5;
Cii ETO 4915, Magee). Thus, the first element of the offense
of desertion viz, absence without leave, is proved by com-
petent and substantial evidence, From all the uncontradicted
facts established by the evidence the court was warranted

. in inferring that accused left his organization with the
intent to avoid hazardous duty (¥Cl, 1928, par.130a, p.143;
Cl ETO 8242, Bradley). Accordingly, all the elements of
the offense alleged in Specification 1 of the Charge are
fully established by the evidence (Cii ETO 1406, Pettapiece).

6. The chérge sheet shows that accused is 21 years
of age and was inducted 14 January 1943. ©No prior service

is shown.

7. The court was legally constituted and had juris-
diction of the person and offense. No errors injuriously
affecting the substantial rights of accused were committed
during the trial. The Board of Review is of the opinion
that the récord of trial is legally sufficient to support
the findings of guilty and the sentence as commuted.
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8. The penalty for desertion in time of war is death
or such other punishment &s a court-martial may direct
(aW 58). Confinement in a penitentiary is authorized by
Article of War 42. The designation of the United States
Penitentiary, Lewisburg, Pennsylvania, as the plate of
confinement is proper (Cir.229, WD, 8 June 1944, sec,.II,

pars.lb(4), 3b). .
' @&Lg‘gam[uh;&ludge Advocate

/ Zﬁ: ;i;'”“““"“e Judge Advocate

A4

'3155245x24zp¢/ Judge Advocate
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-

: 1st Ind. .

War Department, Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the European Theater of Operations. 28 MAY 184

TO: Commanding General, Zuropean Theaber of Operatlons,
APO 887, U. S. Army.

1. In the case of Private ROBERT D. LLVAREZ (30554011),
Company ¥, 137th Infantry, attention is invited to the
foregoing holding by the Board of Review that the record
of trial is legally sufficient to support the findings

~of guilty and the sentence as commuted, which holding is

hereby approved. Under the provisions of Article of Var

5%, you now have authority to order execution of the sen-
tence, .

2. Vhen copies of the published order are forwarded
to this office, they should be accompanied by the foregoing
holding and this indcrsement. The flle number of the
record in this office is Cii ETO 9469, For convenience
of reference, please place that number in brackets at the

end of the order: (Ci ETO 9469).

| i7// Zﬁrg«-[

-ﬂ.l. C ’CWIL
Brlgadler General, United States hrmy
Assistant Judge Advocate General

( Sentence as commuted ordered executed. GCMO 195, ETO, 7 June 1945),
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the .
European Theater

APO €37 | .
BOARD OF REVIEW §O. 1
Cii L0 9470
UNITED STATES . SEING SECTION, COMMUNICATIONS 2013,

Ve

Private JCHL SAFFORD
(34071077), 4145th
Quartermaster Service
Company :

A U L U P

EUKOPEAN THEATAR OF OFERATIONS

Trial by GCH, convened at Paris,
France, 12 January 1945. Sentence:
Dishonorable dlscharge, total
forfeitures and confinement at . ‘
hard lebor for life. United States
Penltentiary, Lew1sourg, Pennsyl-
vania.

HOLDING by BOARD COF HZVIEW NO, 1
RITER, BURROW A4ND STEVERS, Judge Advocates.

\

. 1. The record of trial in the case of the soldier
named above has been examined by the Board of Review and

the Board submits this, its holding, to the Assistant

Judge Advocate Gerneral in charge of the Branch 0ffice

of The Judge Advocate General with the European Theater.

2. Accused was tried upon the following charges and

specifications:

CHARGE I: Violation of the 58th Article of war.

Specification: 1In that Private John Safford,
4145th Quartermester Service Company,
European Theater of Operations, United
States Army, did, at Grandcamp. Les
' Bains, France on or about 19 September

YU INTIAL
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1944, desert the service of the United
States and did remain absent in deser-
tion until he was apprehended at Chelles,
France, on or about 11 November 1944,

CHARGE II: Violation of the S4th irticle of viar,

Specification: In that * * * did, at Chelles,
France, on or about 11 November 1944,

" knowingly and wilfully apgly to his own
use and benefit one GHC 24 ton truck of
the value of more than $50, property of

* the United States, furnished and intended
for the military use thereof,

CHARGE III: Violation of the 96th Article of War.
(Findings of guilty disapproved
by reviewing authority)

Specification: (Findings of guilty disapproved
by reviewing authority)

He pleaded not guiliy and, all of the members of the court
present at the time the vote was taken concurring, was found
guilty of all charges and specifications. ZEvicdence was
introduced of five previous convictions all by special
courts-martial, four for absences without leave for one,
one, two and three days respectively in violation of
Article of War 61 and one for breach of restriction and
absence without leave for cne day in violation of Articles
of War 96 and 61 respectively. All of the members of the
court present at time the vote was taken concurring, he
was sentenced to be hanged by the neck until dead. The
reviewing authority, the Commanding General, Seine Section,
Communications Zone, European Theater of Operations, dis-
approved the findings of guilty of Charge III and its
Specification, approved the sentence and forwarded the
record of trial for acticn under &rticle of Var 48 with
the recommendation that the sentence be commuted to dis-
honorable discharge, forfeiture of all pay and allowances
dug or to become due, and confinement at hard labor for

30 years, that the execution of that portion thereof ad-
judging. dishonorable discharge be suspended until the
soldier's release from confinement, and that Loire Dis-
ciplinary Training Center, Le Mans, France, be designated
as the place of confinement. The confirmihg autherity,
the Commanding General, Europeah Theater of Operations,

p L IRTIAL
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confirmed the sentence, but owing to specizl circumstances
in the case and the recommendaticn of the convening autho-
rity, commuted the same to dishonorablg discharge from the
service, forfeiture of all pay and allowances due or to
become due, and confinement at hard labor for the term of
accused's natural l1life, designated the United States Peni-
tentiary, Lewisburg, Pennsylvania, as the place of confine-
ment, and withheld the order dlrectlng the execution of the
sentence pursvant to Article of ¥Yar 50%. '

3. a. Charge I and Specification. Accused was
absent from his organization from 19 September 1944 to 11
Kovember 1944, when his absence was terminated by avprehen-
sion, The long period of absence - 52 days - coupled with
proof of his unauthorized use of Government motor vehicles
during his delinquency and the fact that although he had
continuous opportunity to surrender himself to military
authorities he failed to do so, fully justified the court
in ccncluding that he intended permanently to absent him-
self from the military service. He is a deserter (CM ETO
12045, Friedman , and suthorities therein cited).

b. Charge II and Specificzticn. Prosecution's
evidence and accused's own statement rroved that ‘he was
in unauthorized possession of and used for his own con-
venience and benefit on 11 November 1944 a 2% ton 6 x 6
Government truck of a.value of more than $50.00. The
offense denounced by the ninth paragraph of the 94th Article

of War, viz.,

“"who * * * applies to his owh use or . )
benefit * * * property of the United

States furnished cr intended for the

military service * * * shall, on con-

viction thereof be punished * * *4,

was fully proved (Cki ETO 13276, Clower and Westbrook;
Cli ETO 11936 Tharpe, et al; Ci: ETO 9288, Mills).

4, The charge sheet shows that accused is 24 years,
four months of age and that he was inducted 28 Liarch 1041
at Alexandria, Virginia, to serve for the duration of the
war plus six months. He had no prior -service.

Ci70
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, 5. The court was legally copstituted and had juris-
diction ‘of the berson and offenses. No errors injuriously
affecting the substantial rights of the sccused were com-
mitted during the trial, The Board of Review is of the

- opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to
support the findings of guilty as anproved and the sentence
as commuted. o

6. The penalty for desertion in time of war is death
or such other punlehment as-a court-martial may direct
(AW 58). Confinement in a penitentiary is authorized by
Article of War 42. The designation of the United States
Penitentiayy, Lewisburg, Pennsylvaniz, as the place of
‘confinement is proper (Cir,229,/V Juye 1944, sec,II,
_pars.1b(4), 3b). /

S/ %
if - g
l157%7 Judge Advocate

_qzzfi'- Wiw/ - Judge Advocate
gﬁé;ﬁgeizng;éZ;%?;Judge Advocate
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lst Ind.

War Department, Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General

with the European Theater. ‘ 1 AUG 1845 TO: Com-
manding General, United States Forces, European Theater,

APO 887, U. s. Army.

: 1. In the case of Private JOHN SAFFCRD (34071077),
4145th Quartermaster Service Company, attention is invited
to the foregoing holding by the Board of Review that the
record of trial is legally sufficient to support the find-
ings of guilty as approved and the sentence as commuted,
which holding is hereby approved, Under the provisions
of Article of War 50%, you now have authority to order
execution of the sentence,

2. Then copies of the published order are forwarded
to this office they should be accompanied by the foregoing
holding and this indorsement. The file number of the
record in this office is CI ETC 9470. TFor convenience
of reference please placg that number in brackets at the

end of the order: (CI ELO 9
E C. MeNEIL,

Brigadier General, United States Army
Assistant Judge Advocate General. i

o

( Santence as commted ordered executed, GCMO 310, ETO, 6 Aug 1945).
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Branch Qffice of The Judge Advocate General

with the
European Theater of Operations
APO 887
BQARD OF REVIEW NO. 2 . 9 JUN }g{ﬁ
CK ETO 9541
UNITED STATES ) NOTRMANDY BASE SECTION, COMI{UNICATIONS
) ZONE, EUROPEAN THEATER OF OPERATIONS
V. )
' ) Trial by GCM, convened at Le Mans, Sarthe,
PTivates ALFRED ONOFREO ) France, 16 March 1945. Sentence as to
(31281012), Company